City of New Castle Delaware
City Council Regular Meeting
New Castle Senior Center*
400 South Street, New Castle, DE 19720
Tuesday, March 11, 2025
7:00 p.m.

Agenda
Roll Call
Minutes 2-18-2025 and 2-19-25

Presentations:
-Board of Health Annual Report

Staff Reports

Treasurer’s Report

Reports from the City Administrator & Staff
Council Communications

Report from the Council President

Business from the Mayor

Comments from a Good Will Fire Co. representative

O O O O O O

Public Comments (concerning agenda items or general public comments on matters relating to
the City of New Castle)

Mayors introduction of Arbor Day Proclamation

New Business:

1. Council Discussion, Possible Motion and Vote on Resolution 2025-18 A Resolution to
Appoint Melissa Pavone to the Flood Resiliency Committee. (Council President Suzanne
Souder Posted 3/4/2025)

2. Council Discussion, Possible Motion and Vote on Resolution 2025-19 A Resolution
To Approve MSC Financing the purchase of two vehicles through M&T Bank. (Council
President Suzanne Souder Posted 3/4/2025)

3. Council Discussion, Possible Motion and Vote to authorize a letter of commitment for
up to a 25% project match for the Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities
(BRIC) grant program for flood mitigation (Council President Suzanne Souder Posted
3/4/2025)

Next Regular Meeting Date: April 8, 2025

Posted: 3/04/2025
Note: This agenda as listed may not be considered in sequence, including executive sessions.

*You can also view the meeting online at the address below. A clickable link is available on the City
website at www.newcastlecity.delaware.gov/events.

There will be no comments taken from the Zoom audience; comments may be submitted via email up to
3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 10™, 2025 at info@newcastlecity.delaware.gov



http://www.newcastlecity.delaware.gov/events

Meeting Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83870297863?pwd=mlo643bQeiNTTVSFsznsMbv3apa2vQ.1
Enter Password: 015107

You can also listen to the meeting via telephone by calling one of the phone numbers below and entering
the meeting ID and password when prompted. (Long distance rates may apply.)

(301) 715-8592 or (646) 558-8656.

Webinar ID: 838 7029 7863 Passcode: 015107



City of New Castle Delaware
Regular City Council Meeting
Meeting Held in Person and via Zoom
Tuesday, February 18, 2025

7:00 p.m.
Call to Order: 7:00 PM
Roll Call
Present: Council President Suzanne M. Souder

Councilperson Andrew Zeltt
Councilperson Brian M. Mattaway
Councilperson Joseph F. Day, II1
Councilperson Nermin Zubaca

Also present: Michael Hoffman, Esquire, City Solicitor
Mayor Valarie Leary
Antonina Tantillo, City Administrator
Police Chief Richard McCabe
Christopher Rogers, City Planner
Chief David Majewski, Good Will Fire Company

Council President Souder called the February 18, 2025, City Council meeting to order at 7:00
p.m. The assembly stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. Roll call followed and a quorum to
conduct business was declared.

Annual Reports
Flood Resiliency Committee
Ms. Alice Riehl presented the Annual Report of the Flood Resiliency Committee (FRC).

e Funding for the Wetlands Preservation Project for the Natural Resources Conservation
Service of the Department of Agriculture (NRCS) was put on hold. The NRCS
Conservationist was not encouraging, and FRC was informed that they would be behind
National projects.

e Other sources of funding were researched through various agencies, including the Army
Corps of Engineers (Corps). The Corps was very encouraging and a meeting was held on
February 6, 2025, with the Corps that included representatives from the FRC, the City of
New Castle, State and local Legislators, and New Castle County to discuss issues facing
the City. The Corps representative stated that coastal flooding would be easier to address
than stormwater flooding. Ms. Tantillo is drafting a communication to the Corps
outlining the issues and requesting assistance from the Corps.

e Other agencies FRC has met with include the University of Delaware Biden School Grant
Assistance Program (GAP), Delaware Sea Grant/RASCL, and DEMA. Although Federal
funding is uncertain, the FRC was encouraged to submit applications for various grants.

e Ms. Riehl asked City Council for approval to have the City Engineer present at all future
meetings.



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Historic Area Commission

Ms. Tera Hayward-Olivas presented the Annual Report for the Historic Area Commission
(HAC).
e 166 Applications were approved as Tier 1 Staff Review by either City Architect Leila
Hamroun or City Building Official Jeff Bergstrom.

e 33 Applications were reviewed by the Commission as Tier 2, including three Special
Meetings to review Applications.

e Seven (7) Applications were reviewed as consultations.

e A better process was implemented for the HAC Agenda to eliminate confusion as to what
Applications would be addressed.

e HAC worked with Staff on a more efficient process for reporting Tier 1 and Tier 2
Summaries.

e HAC assures Applicants are aware of the State Preservation Tax Credit Program to assist
with funding for projects in the Historic District.

e A Work Session was conducted in June to discuss changes to the HAC page on the City
Website to make it more User friendly.
e For 2025 HAC will:
o Continue to work with the City Administrator to ensure everyone is working
efficiently.

o Create educational materials focused on the role of the HAC and the process of
applying for a Historic Review Certificate to ensure Applications are submitted
with all information to facilitate the review process and insure that applications do
not need to be resubmitted or that work needs to be removed because it was done
without HAC approval.

o Create training workshops for:
* Commissioners and City Officials/Staff.

* (Climate Adaptation workshops focused on small Historic districts in
tandem with programs other Commissions/Committees are doing.

o Create documentation providing detailed specifics on aspects of the Applicant’s
areas, such as signage in the Historic Commercial District, to help business
owners and residents.

e Asa Certified Local Government (CLG), HAC qualifies for CLG 60/40 matching grants
through the City that can be used to pursue historic preservation related projects and
programs. The match can be provided via cash and/or donated services or materials. Ms.
Hayward-Olivas requested $6,000 be allotted to HAC in the City Budget.

e Ms. Hayward-Olivas identified areas where more support for HAC is needed:

o More uniform enforcement of HAC regulations.

o More support from City Staff and Elected Officials. Ms. Hayward-Olivas stated
this support is needed specifically in instances where decisions have been made



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

that affect areas under the purview of HAC, where HAC was not consulted or a
Historic Review Certificate was not issued. Ms. Hayward-Olivas added that this
ultimately undermines the rule of HAC and the Commission respectfully requests
that the City and Elected Officials defer to HAC before taking any action that
impacts the Historic Area.

o Improved communication between City Staff, Applicants and Contractors.

In response to a question from Councilperson Zubaca, Ms. Hayward-Olivas stated HAC applies
for CLG grants annually. Ms. Tantillo added that she and Ms. Hayward-Olivas will be
discussing CLG grants soon. Ms. Hayward-Olivas also noted that the $6,000 she asked for is an
average annual amount HAC would need as the matching portion of CLG grants.

In response to a question from Councilperson Zeltt regarding how new homeowners are notified
their house is in the Historic District, Ms. Hayward-Olivas noted that in her case, her realtor
notified her that she would be living in the Historic District. Council President Souder noted that
a question on the State of Delaware Seller Disclosure Form is “Is this property subject to any
regulation?” and gives examples that includes the Historic Area, which the Buyer signs.

In response to a question from Councilperson Zubaca, Ms. Tantillo stated that the City does not
send out any communication to residents in the Historic District regarding available tax
incentives for historic homes; adding that when residents apply for a HAC permit, City Staff
does inform them of available tax incentives.

Fiscal Year 2024 Audit

Council President Souder introduced Messrs. Frank DeFroda and Evan Petrin of Whisman,
Giordano and Associates presenters the Fiscal Year 2024 Audit. Council President Souder stated
that City Treasurer James Whisman was the founder of Whisman, Giordano and Associates, but
has had no association with the firm for more than 20 years.

Mr. DeFroda gave an overview of the Independent Auditors Report, the Basic Financial
Statements, Fund Level Financial Statements, and Notes to the Financial Statements and
Supplemental Information. Mr. DeFroda stated that an unmodified Auditor’s Opinion on
Financial Statements was issued.

Recommendations:

Management is working towards eliminating four (4) recommendations made last year; one (1)
has been implemented, and the firm is in the process assisting the City and it is expected that by
the end of the fiscal year all recommendations will be addressed.

Treasurer’s Report
In Mr. Whisman’s absence, Council President Souder presented the unaudited Treasurer’s
Report as of January 31, 2025:

Total unrestricted funds $ 9,599,755.44
Total restricted funds $ 3,284,058.61



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Total cash $12,883,814.05

The City received 67% of projected income, including 100% of property taxes. The City has
spent 54% of projected expenses.

A motion to approve the Treasurer’s Report as presented subject to audit was made by
Councilperson Day, seconded by Councilperson Zubaca, and was unanimously passed.

Reports from the City Administrator and Staff
Report From the City Administrator

Code Enforcement Officer — Ms. Tantillo is working on hiring a new Code Enforcement
Officer.

DelDOT — The City was informed that Norfolk Southern continues to coordinate the
cleanup. Ms. Tantillo will monitor the situation and report back to Council with updates.

Mt. Salem Church — Due to weather delays, the removal of the addition on the rear of Mt.
Salem Church has been delayed; but they are working on the project to bring the building
into compliance. Ms. Tantillo will monitor the situation and report back to Council with
updates.

Floating Pier — The floating dock has been fabricated and the gangway fabrication is
finishing. It is hoped it will be delivered by the end of next week. The contractor has not
notified the City that they will not meet the moratorium deadline to drive the piles.

Citywide Paving Contract — Cirillo Bros. was awarded the contract for paving in the City.
Construction notices will be sent to property owners surrounding the area where the work
will be done, and that information will be posted on the City website.

ADA Sidewalk Contract — The ADA sidewalk contract was awarded to Advanced Paving
Services and the contract is being finalized.

City Website — The City is working with three (3) groups of University of Delaware
programs.

o UD Biden School of Public Policy — Evaluation of revenue streams in the City
and exploration on how to increase revenues.

o UD MBA Student — Evaluation of current job descriptions and the Employee
Handbook to recommend updates and/or changes.

o UD Communication Undergraduate Students — Revamp the whole City Website
and provide updates.

UD Biden School of Public Policy — A University of Delaware PhD student has been
awarded a summer project to study and examine the current practices being followed by
the City of New Castle in Infrastructure Financing and understanding whether any
collaborative efforts are being employed by the City in tapping municipal financing and
meeting infrastructure needs. The project will begin in late summer.

Dog Park — The survey and wetlands evaluation have been completed and final data is
being collected. When the report is received, the City can proceed with specs for the
property for fencing and other requirements.



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Code Red Program — Ms. Tantillo recommended that all residents enroll in the City’s
Code Red Program for important communications. City Staff is available to assist with
enrollment if needed.

Flood Resiliency Committee — Ms. Tantillo stated that a very productive meeting was
held with the Army Corps of Engineers and other stakeholders to discuss various projects
and priorities. Ms. Tantillo added that she was very encouraged by everyone’s
attendance and their interest.

City Election — The election for open seats on City Council will be held on Saturday,
April 12", The Notice of Solicitation of Candidates was posted last month; the filing
period opened on Monday, February 3™ and will close on Friday, February 28" at 5:00
p.m. Requests for filing forms are available at the City Administration office or via email.
Three seats are up for election: City Council President and two (2) Councilperson seats.
Those interested in running for any of the open seats on Council must comply with State
and City Code requirements, including:

o Must be a citizen of the State of Delaware.

o Must be a resident of the City of New Castle and have resided in the City for two
years before the election.

At the time of the election must be a qualified voter of the City.
Must be 21 years of age as of the date of the election.
Must have never been convicted of a felony.

Ms. Tantillo reminded residents to register to vote with the State of Delaware at
ivote.delaware.gov. Absentee voting applications will be available on March 3™, and the
first day to file absentee votes is March 10™.

Grants — Since the last Council Meeting the City has applied for additional grants:

o Delaware Preservation Fund for development of a capital improvement plan to
improve the City Administration building.

o Keep Delaware Beautiful America 250 Grant for beautification of the smaller
City parks for cleanup and landscaping.

o Transportation Alternatives Project Grant to continue to work toward a bike
shared-use path that is currently being evaluated by the Delaware Bike Grant
Fund for a feasibility study.

Additional grants that will be applied for this month to include additional park grants,
homeland and cybersecurity grants, and additional transportation grants, as well as grants
for flooding and hazard mitigation.

Councilperson Zubaca asked if a broader conversation should be held regarding obtaining a
minimum of three (3) bids for all contracts.

In response to a question from Councilperson Zubaca, Ms. Tantillo stated that DelDOT was at
the meeting with the Army Corps of Engineers and they mentioned the project on Rt. 9 installing
a pervious layer over a portion of the roadway. Ms. Tantillo noted her understanding that they
were in the bidding phase for that project. Mr. Rogers stated that AECOM designed the project
but does not have any control over DelDOT’s bidding or contracting process, and he did not



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

know DelDOT’s schedule. Councilperson Zubaca expressed his concern with summer traffic in
the affected area. Ms. Tantillo noted that DelDOT typically factors in those considerations;
adding that she would reach out to DelDOT to remind them of the influx of traffic during the
summer months.

Report from Chief McCabe
Chief McCabe reported on the following:

e On January 30" officers handled the death investigation of an adult male found in the
woods behind Walgreens. A homeless couple was living in a tent behind Walgreens.
The nature of his death is not suspicious, but it is still under investigation.

e On February 11" patrol officers were dispatched to a shooting in the Penn Valley area.
Two suspects were shot with non-life-threatening injuries. The incident is still being
investigated, and Chief McCabe asked that anyone who has information or may have
video of the incident reach out to the Detectives.

e On February 14" patrol officers conducted a traffic stop of a vehicle spinning its wheels
in the area of New Castle Avenue. They identified signs of intoxication and conducted
an impaired driving evaluation. As a result, a stolen firearm and drugs were found and an
arrest was made.

e Saturday, March 1% is the Annual Tactician Run in New Castle. Registration begins at
8:00 a.m. and the race starts at 9:00 a.m. Roads will be closed around 8:45 a.m. to ensure
there are no obstructions or obstacles.

e Chief McCabe is working on his Annual Report.

In response to a question from Councilperson Day, Chief McCabe stated that firm data on the
number of homeless encampments in the area is not available, mainly because they are transient.
The Department is work with State agencies to help identify the number of homeless
encampments. He added that the encampment was not visible from the railroad tracks and the
Department had not received any reports about the encampment. Chief McCabe added that had
the Department known about the encampment they could have offered assistance to anyone
struggling with substance abuse.

In response to a question from Councilperson Zubaca, Chief McCabe clarified the crime
statistics in his report.

In response to a question from Councilperson Mattaway, Chief McCabe stated that the statewide
recruiting program could definitely be used for Fire and EMS candidates as well as Police
candidates.

Council Communications
Councilperson Mattaway
e Councilperson Mattaway thanked Good Will Fire Company and everyone who came out
to the Blood Donation Drive.




City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Councilperson Zubaca

e Councilperson Zubaca thanked Public Works for their work during the recent snow
events.

e Councilperson Zubaca thanked the Trust for their work in repairing and rebuilding the
shoreline in Battery Park.

e Councilperson Zubaca thanked all residents, employees and businesses who received
City Awards last month.

e Councilperson Zubaca noted his appreciation of the cultural, ethnic, and religious
diversity in the City and asked everyone to celebrate that diversity.

Councilperson Zeltt
e Councilperson Zeltt thanked Mr. Delgado from Public Works for filling in potholes on
the gravel road behind the Senior Center.

Councilperson Day
e Councilperson Day will be meeting with the City Administrator and the Trust regarding
the bathrooms in Battery Park.

e Councilperson Day stated that he signed up for Code Red and received his first text and
email today; and it was very helpful. He encouraged all residents to register.

e Councilperson Day echoed Councilperson Zubaca’s appreciation of Public Works for
their work during the recent snow events.

Report from the Council President

Council President Souder thanked the residents who cleared the sidewalks in front of their
homes, and also those who helped out neighbors who could not clear their own sidewalk. She
added that it is a requirement that everyone clear their walks.

Business From the Mayor
e Mayor Leary noted that the first meeting for the Rt. 9 improvement was held on April 4,
2022, and expressed her appreciation that the project is finally getting done. The
pervious layer will be laid from the Deemer’s Beach Parking Lot to Grantham Lane.

e On January 30", Mses. Souder, Tantillo and Leary participated in a call with GoRail the
entity that represents freight train travel through the City, and discussed Quite Zones.
The City is waiting for contact information for the appropriate individual to speak with.
They also attended a Webinar on Quiet Crossings. Mayor Leary noted that all railroad
crossings must meet the current safety standards; and the cost to bring each crossing into
compliance is between $800,000 and $1M. Mayor Leary also noted that Quiet Zones are
only discussed after the crossing meets all safety standards.

e Mayor Leary reminded everyone about Restaurant Week February 26 — March 2. Posters
will be up on February 19%.

In response to a question from Councilperson Zubaca, Mayor Leary stated that the City has never
applied for Quiet Zones because not all crossings comply with safety standards.



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Comments From Good Will Fire Co.
Chief Majewski reported that:
e There were 196 EMS responses in January, which is higher than usual.

e There were 124 fire rescue responses in January, including several working fires.

e There was a marine fire in the Delaware River on February 18", Good Will Fire Co. was
alerted at 9:39 a.m. for a fire on board a tugboat in the area of Penn’s Beach. The tugboat
Thor, which did not have any fire suppression equipment onboard, lost all power and
steering and was adrift in the channel. The four crewmembers abandoned ship and were
safely evacuated from the barges they were pushing by two Good Samaritan tugboats in
the area. Ten vessels responded to the incident, including Good Will, Wilmington Fire
Department Fire Boat 7 and Philadelphia Fire Department Marine 1. The fire was
successfully extinguished approximately 90 minutes from dispatch.

e Chief Majewski noted that the Delaware Valley Firemen’s Association (DVFA) received
a grant for recruitment retention and has a similar platform to the recruiting platform
being used by the Police Department. Approximately 12 requests have been received by
Good Will; however, after follow-up by Good Will no one ever responded back. In
response to a question from Councilperson Zubaca, Chief Majewski stated that across the
board responses to most Fire Departments have not yielded new hires.

Public Comment

Brenda Graves — 29 Christian Road

Ms. Graves reiterated her request for help from City Council regarding the need for an
investigation and audit of the Boothhurst Corporation. Ms. Graves noted that she invited
Council and Legislators to attend the annual meeting, and only Representative Franklin Cooke
came.

Phil Gross — 1301 13™ Street
e Mr. Gross encouraged interested residents to run for the open seats on City Council.

e Mr. Gross asked that picnic tables be put back in Battery Park for the summer.

e Mr. Gross opined that the Flood Resiliency Committee should be put on hold because the
Committee has not accomplished anything. He added that he was told by legislators that
there is no funding for any large projects.

e Mr. Gross stated that the City Council Agenda should be cut back and public comment
should be for five (5) minutes.

Rod Miller — East 3" Street

Mr. Miller reiterated his past request that City Council adopt an Ordinance to ban single family
homes being cut into multiple unit apartments. He added that many communities in Delaware
and southern New Jersey have already adopted this type of Ordinance.

James Eggerton
Mr. Eggerton stated that he owns the Terry House and two (2) AirBnB’s in New Castle and
spoke in opposition to Resolution 2025-12, opining that short-term rentals help drive business to




City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

local shops and restaurants; and if an additional tax is levied he would probably need to turn his
AirBnB’s into long-term rentals.

Dennis Young — 5 Street

Mr. Young spoke in opposition of Resolutions 2025-12 and 2024-46, opining that Council is
targeting one group of hard-working business people that are trying to make a living in New
Castle. Mr. Young urged Council to give consideration to Mom-and-Pop shops and vote against
these Resolutions.

David Connell — 25 Clymer Street
e Mr. Connell noted that he submitted nine (9) FOIA requests but has not received the
requested information yet.

e Mr. Connell stated that he has a 3-story structure next to him that he feels is a time-bomb
and he is creating a firebreak in his home.

Council Discussion, Possible Motion and Vote on Resolution 2025-14 — A Resolution to
approve the FY 2024 Financial Audit

Council President read the Resolution.

A motion to approve the FY 2025-14 Financial Audit as presented was made by
Councilperson Day. The motion was seconded by Councilperson Zeltt and was
unanimously carried.

Council Discussion, Possible Motion and Vote on Resolution 2025-17 — A Resolution to
Confirm the Mayor’s appointment of Marc-Antony Williams to the Planning Commission.

Mark-Antony Williams — Planning Commission — Term Ending February 18, 2028
Council President Souder read the Resolution and noted Mr. Williams’ background.

A motion to approve Resolution 2025-17 to appoint Mark-Antony Williams to the Planning
Commission with a term ending February 18, 2028, was made by Councilperson Zubaca.
The motion was seconded by Councilperson Zeltt and was unanimously carried.

A motion to approve Resolution 2025-17 as amended subject to two clerical corrections was
made by Councilperson Zubaca. The motion was seconded by Councilperson Day and was
unanimously carried.

Council Discussion, Possible Motion and Vote on Resolution 2025-15 - A Resolution
Approving a Re-subdivision of Riverbend at Old New Castle.

Mr. Rogers explained that the purpose of the re-subdivision for the Riverbend Subdivision is to
add various on-lot drainage and utility easements. No lot line adjustments are being proposed
and there is no new development being proposed as a result of the re-subdivision plan. Mr.



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Rogers explained that storm drain pipes necessary to drain the streets were missed when the
original plans were recorded; and the third party maintenance corporation needs to get on private
lots in order to access those drainage pipes.

During discussion, Mr. Rogers noted that:
e The streets and drainage easements are private.

e Mr. Rogers is unsure of the ownership of the subject lots; and opined that the easements
are being proposed in areas where the lots are being transferred in blocks to a builder.

e The re-subdivision updates some of the development/owner situation.

e Re-subdivision is a subdivision that does not create any new development potential and
can be reviewed administratively with administerial approval by City Council.

Ms. Tantillo will research if Freedom Development owns 50% of the development and will
update Council.

Council President Souder read the Resolution.

A motion to approve Resolution 2025-15 subject to clerical corrections was made by
Councilperson Day. The motion was seconded by Councilperson Mattaway and was
unanimously carried.

Council Discussion and Potential Action regarding establishing a City of New Castle Legacy
Fund with the Delaware Community Foundation.

Councilperson Mattaway gave a follow-up presentation on establishing a Legacy Fund with the
Delaware Community Foundation (DCF) as an additional revenue stream for the City that would
allow individuals to donate in a philanthropic way to the City or to the Fund where the City is the
beneficiary. Councilperson Mattaway asked Council to give the City Administrator approval to
move forward to determine the parameters of the Fund with the intention of approving the
establishment of the Fund. Councilperson Mattaway added that the establishment of the Fund is
allowed under the City Charter; noting that the City has already received an anonymous donation
of $10,000 via ONCOR that would be reimbursed if the Fund is not established.

During discussion it was noted that:
e The purpose of the Fund would be broadly designated.
e DCEF fees are determined by the amount in the Fund; and if the City established the Fund

with an investment of $25,000, the management fee would be 1% per year with a
minimum annual fee of $250.00.

e The minimum Fund is $25,000 and an additional $15,000 would be needed to establish
the Fund. Councilperson Mattaway stated that he is in favor of the City allocating funds
to meet the minimum required to establish a Fund.

e Individuals can direct how their donation can be used.

10



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

e As the beneficiary of the Fund the City’s initial investment could be reimbursed if
donations increase the Fund in an amount that would maintain the $25,000 minimum
balance.

e Donations include stocks, bonds, cash, real estate, and legacy bequests; and can be made
by individuals, groups, or businesses.

e I[fthe Fund falls below an amount where it is no longer feasible to operate, it would be
subject to a small trust termination.

e Councilperson Mattaway noted that donations are made throughout the year, and that
bringing the legislation forward prior to December 31, 2024 it was purposeful to capture
end-of-year donations.

e Ms. Tantillo noted that if the Fund is not established prior to the end of the fiscal year the
$10,000 anonymous donation must be returned to the donor.

City Solicitor Hoffman noted that since the intention is to research opening a Fund and have City
Council review and possibly vote on the matter in March a formal Motion is not required.

After the discussion, it was the consensus of City Council to have City Administrator Tantillo
and Councilperson Mattaway move forward to research opening a Legacy Fund with the DCF
and make recommendations to Council in March.

Council Discussion, Possible Motion and Vote on Resolution 2025-16 — A Resolution to Sign
the Greatest American Cleanup Declaration in Partnership with Keep America Beautiful for
America’s 2500,

Council President Souder read the Resolution. During discussion it was noted that by signing the
Declaration the City commitment is to encourage the efforts for beautification, greener areas, and
the work the City applied for under the grant (beautification of six (6) parks to include planting
of plants, a public clean-up day, etc.) and no monetary commitment by the City is required.
Councilperson Day stated that the Litter Crew clean-ups can be coordinated do dovetail into the
Declaration requirements.

A motion to approve Resolution 2025-16 was made by Councilperson Day. The motion was
seconded by Councilperson Mattaway and was unanimously carried.

General Council Discussion of possible revenue streams to be addressed by Council and the
General Assembly.

Councilperson Mattaway made a presentation in support of instituting new revenue streams,
noting, among other things, that:

e Property taxes have not been increased in 16 years.
e There are 698 rental units in the City of New Castle.

e Councilperson Mattaway reviewed how Delaware and cities in many states are
exploring and/or instituting new revenue streams, including:

11



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Increased impact fees.

Increased property taxes.

Parking tickets.

Increased tolls for paying in cash vs. EZPass.

o Newl/increased business license fees to ride-hailing companies.

e From 2017-2025 over $2.8M has been taken out of the City’s savings to fund very lean
budgets.

o
@)
o
O

e Ms. Tantillo concurred with Councilperson Mattaway that capital improvement funds
are something the City should have.

e A gross rental receipt tax is in place at the State level and also implemented at the City
level throughout Delaware.

e Councilperson Mattaway reviewed how many Sussex County cities are benefiting from
a gross rental receipt tax.

e Councilperson Mattaway estimated that the annual benefit to the City by imposing a
lodging tax on the 698 rental units could be as much as $500,000.00.

At Councilperson Mattaway’s request, City Solicitor Hoffman stated that in the State of
Delaware any tax increase that is not currently authorized in your Charter must be expressly
authorized in your Charter for the City to impose that tax. A first step is to go to the General
Assembly and ask for the authority to impose a tax. The second step is to actually impose the
tax.

In response to a question from Councilperson Mattaway, Mr. Hoffman stated he could not speak
specifically to Mayor Leary’s assertion that the first $300,000 of gross rental receipts would be
subtracted.

Councilperson Mattaway noted several initiatives that could be considered for city employees,
residents aged 65+, and for long-time renters.

In conclusion, Councilperson Mattaway asked City Council to consider moving forward with
petitioning the General Assembly with respect to potential additional revenue opportunities that
would have to come back to Council for enactment.

Councilperson Zubaca thanked Councilperson Mattaway for his comprehensive presentation. He
also noted his concern with how the City will continue to balance the budget year after year and
stated his feeling about the City’s current and potential revenue streams. Councilperson Zubaca
also stated that he would like to set the City for a successful future and recommended that
Council discuss these issues in workshops.

Council President Souder noted her understanding that some resident’s property tax
reassessments have gone up as much as 3-4 times, and stated if that is correct, the City’s income
would increase dramatically without increasing property taxes; adding that because the result of
the reassessment is as yet unknown, Council cannot make intelligent, reasonable decisions about
imposing new taxes until all the data is available.

12



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Council President Souder stated that in a conversation with Senator Poore, Senator Poore opined
that:
e The General Assembly would not look kindly on a municipality that requested a Charter
Change and did not enact it.

e The General Assembly would probably prefer that multiple Charter changes be
incorporated into one request.

Council President Souder opined that Council should not request a Charter change until it is clear
what Council wants to do. She also stated that would probably put requesting a Charter change
off until next year, but opined that was the better course of action.

Council President Souder stated that the Delaware Code provides that only a city with a
population for 50,000 or more can impose a wage tax; and in response to her question to Senator
Poore regarding the likelihood of the General Assembly approving such a wage tax, Senator
Poore asked “Does New Castle have a population of 50,000?”” which implied she did not think
the General Assembly would approve the request. Further, Senator Poore thought that the
General Assembly would not look favorably on a municipality with a population of less than
50,000 requested a Charter change to institute a wage tax.

Councilperson Mattaway stated that he believes the City needs new revenue streams, and he
believes that the proposed taxes are necessary. He added that requesting approval from the
General Assembly would provide the City with the flexibility to institute the taxes. Mr. Hoffman
stated that the City could certainly request the Charter change; however, he could not speak to
whether the request would be approved.

Council President Souder and Councilperson Mattaway conducted a further exchange and a
discussion ensued.

Councilperson Day noted several issues:

e It has not been shown that a lodging tax would bring in more revenue than it would cost
to manage the process. Councilperson Mattaway estimated a lodging tax would bring in
approximately $8,000 in annual revenue. Councilperson Day opined that it would cost
more than that to manage the process.

e Regarding a wage tax, Councilperson Day added that Wilmington is the only city in the
State that has a wage tax and that tax is levied against all employees working within the
city limits as well as all residents of the city.

Councilperson Day stated that he is in favor of further discussion; but it is concerning that the
whole picture is not being looked at, including how the reassessment will affect revenues.

Council President Souder noted that all cities reviewed for the rental tax were beach cities; and
beach cities have a much different rental profile than a residential community like New Castle.

13



City Council Regular Meeting
February 18, 2025

Councilperson Mattaway stated that the idea of a gross receipts tax in the City of New Castle is
not new; noting that franchise fees have been collected for years.

Council President Souder reiterated that Council needs to have the property tax reassessment
data before other revenue sources are considered.

Councilperson Day opined that property taxes will likely have to be raised; but when you also
institute a wage tax and a rental tax, it compounds the impact on the residents.

Councilperson Zubaca stated that from what he sees, the proposed taxes are an amazing revenue
source; however, he would like to ensure that Council does due diligence before making a
decision.

Council President Souder stated her understanding that other members of Council feel that it is
too soon to proceed because the reassessment data is still not available; and that means putting
the matter on hold for a year until that data is available. Councilperson Zubaca stated that he
would like to see some projected numbers before proceeding; however, he did not think that the
matter would have to wait months before considering it again.

A motion to table Resolution 2025-12 and Resolution 2024-46 based on the conversation
was made by Councilperson Mattaway. The motion was seconded by Councilperson Zeltt
and was carried with a vote of four in favor and one abstaining (Councilperson Zubaca).

There being no further business to discuss, Council President Souder called for a motion to
adjourn.

A motion to adjourn was made by Councilperson Zubaca. The motion was seconded by
Councilperson Day. The motion was unanimously passed and the meeting adjourned at
10:30 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen R. Weirich
City Stenographer

Next Regular Meeting Date: February 11, 2025
Posted: 2/11/2025

14



City of New Castle Delaware
City Council Special Meeting
City Conference Room
220 Delaware Street
Wednesday, February 19, 2025

5:00 p.m.

Call to Order: 5:00 PM

Roll Call

Present: Council President, Suzanne M. Souder
Councilperson Joseph F. Day
Councilperson Brian M. Mattaway
Councilperson Andrew Zeltt

Absent: Councilperson Nermin Zubaca

Also present: Antonina Tantillo, City Administrator
Michael Hoffman, Esquire

Council President Souder called the February 19, 2025, special City Council meeting to order at
5:00 p.m.

A motion to move to executive session was made by Councilperson Day. Councilperson Zeltt
seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously carried, and the special City Council
meeting adjourned to executive session at 5:01 p.m.

The meeting returned from executive session at 6:21 p.m.

A motion to adjourn was made by Councilperson Zubaca and seconded by Councilperson Day.
The motion passed unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 6:21 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen R. Weirich
City Stenographer

Next Regular Meeting Date: March 11, 2025



City of New Castle Board of Health
Annual Report to City Council
March 11, 2025

In accordance with Ordinance 545, we are providing this report of the 2024 activities of the
New Castle Board of Health.

In 2024, our Board met only twice. Unfortunately, as a small Board it is sometimes difficult
to have a quorum. Despite only meeting twice instead of four times, we completed the
following:
e Two articles from the Board of Health were published in The Weekly in 2024. One
article was on tick-borne diseases and the other article was on RSV
e Updated our section of the Code so that we have more flexibility and membership
may more accurately reflect today’s changing health care environment. The
changes were presented to the City Council and approved
e Two long-standing members of the Board, Dr. Jo Viola and Ellie Green, chose not to
continue on the Board in 2024. Thanks to Mayor Valarie Leary, we now have two new
Board members, Jamie Majewski and Susan McLaughlin. Both individuals joined us
for the first time at our Fall meeting.

Our members stay up to date on community/public health issues in a variety of ways,
mostly through vetted online sources. At least 2 of our members are interested in attending
CERT (Community Emergency Response Team) training which is offered through New
Castle County but no dates are currently available. Those members would definitely
consider taking the CERT training if and when it is available again. There is currently no cost
for CERT training.

Of our 5 members, one has had FOIA training and the remaining 4 (David Bechtel, Jamie
Majewski, Susan McLaughlin, Jacqueline Metz) are interested in attending a FOIA class,
especially if it is offered online.

So far, we have found the guidance from Antonina Tantillo to be invaluable. We think our
section of the Code may need a bit more tweaking and she has promised to help with that.
We are interested in exploring what activities other health boards in towns our size are
involved in and think she can help with that as well. Community input to determine what
our residents feel is important to them would also be useful in guiding our direction. We are
currently exploring statewide data sources to see what information we can glean from
those but may want to do a resident survey in the future.



Besides the guidance and support from Ms. Tantillo, having the Code Enforcement officer
back with us to discuss his or her activities will be helpful once the individual is onboard.

The Board of Health does not interact with a professional advisor currently. Our board
consists of a physician, 2 nurses with public/community health background, a mental
health/substance abuse professional, and a First Responder. We have no openings at this
time and are pleased with the group that has been assembled.

We have not received any specific complaints in the past few years. Any complaints we
might receive in the future will be shared immediately with the City Administrator.

In 2025, the Board of Health plans to focus on community mental health issues while
remaining alert to emerging threats which might affect the health and well-being of
community members. Right now that includes tracking developments related to avian flu
and measles. In addition, we want to interact more collaboratively with other groups and/or
events in the city. We hope to offer a community health fair in late summer or fall, perhaps
in conjunction with one of the blood drives. We will also continue to seek opportunities to
write articles for The Weekly.

Currently we do not have any grant funding request plans. We only have 5 members and 2
are brand new so we see this year as a building year.

Our Fiscal Year 2026 Budget request needs to cover the cost of space rental for our
meetings and the stenographer. We request an additional $250 to help offset costs related
to providing a community health fair for our residents in the fall of 2025.

Thank you for the opportunity to share information about the New Castle Board of Health.
We appreciate both your interest and your input.

Respectfully submitted,
Tish Gallagher
Chair, New Castle Board of Health



CITY OF NEW CASTLE

TREASURER'S REPORT - UNAUDITED

PERIOD ENDING: FEBRUARY 28, 2025

Cash Account Name Period Ending Balance Prior Period Change
TOTAL PETTY CASH ON HAND 1,100.00 1,100.00 0.00
GENERAL FUND 234,919.24 286,083.50 -51,164.26
PAYROLL CHECKING 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
MONEY MARKET RETENTION 9,098,287.19 9,307,571.94 -209,284.75
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED FUNDS 9,339,306.43 9,599,755.44 -260,449.01
MUNICIPAL STREET AID SAVINGS 624,207.77 623,370.38 837.39
SEPARATION DAY ACCOUNT 63,484.55 63,435.87 48.68
MM SAVINGS/ FY18 BOND FUNDS 2,213,299.68 2,238,881.52 -25,581.84
SALLE/EIDE/POLICE GRANTS 44,553.03 45,913.03 -1,360.00
EMPLOYEE REDEMPTION FUND 187,457.81 187,457.81 0.00
CAPITAL RESERVE 125,000.00 125,000.00 0.00
TOTAL RESTRICTED FUNDS 3,258,002.84 3,284,058.61 -26,055.77
TOTAL CASH IN ACCOUNTS 12,697,309.27 12,883,814.05 -286,504.78
RECONCILIATION TO CASH
Monthly Cash Receipts 195,296.08
Monthly Expenditures 481,800.86
NET CHANGE: -286,504.78 |
TRANSFERS BETWEEN GF CHECKING AND OTHER CITY ACCOUNTS:
DATE: TRANSFER TO/FROM AMOUNT NOTES
2/3/25 [TRANSFER TO GF CHECKING 3,383.60 FROM BOND FUNDS
2/6/25 (TRANSFER TO PAYROLL 111,482.58 FROM RET MM
2/19/25 TRANSFER TO PAYROLL 110,549.08 FROM RET MM
2/28/25 [TRANSFER TO GF CHECKING 26,560.38 FROM GRANTS







Account ID

10-0000-420-0001
10-0000-420-0002
10-0000-420-0003
10-0000-420-0004
10-0000-430-0001
10-0000-430-0002
10-0000-430-0003
10-0000-430-0004
10-0000-430-0005
10-0000-430-0006
10-0000-430-0007
10-0000-430-0008
10-0000-440-0001
10-0000-440-0002
10-0000-450-0003
10-0000-450-0004
10-0000-450-0005
10-0000-450-0006
10-0000-455-0001
10-0000-470-0001
10-0000-470-0004
10-0000-470-0005
10-0000-470-0007
10-0000-480-0001
10-0000-480-0002
10-0000-480-0003
10-0000-480-0004
10-0000-511-0001
10-0000-511-0005
10-0000-511-0006
10-0000-524-0000
10-0000-526-0000
FINAL TOTALS

CITY OF NEW CASTLE
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%

REVENUE Description

Property Tax Current Year

Tax Penalties

Property Tax Transfers

Delinquent Tax Collection

Business Licenses

Rental

Building/HAC Applications

Bldg Dept Penalties

Vacant Bldg Registration Fees

Code Violation Penalties

Code Enforcement Cost Reimbursements
Special Trash

State Courts

Towing/Storage Fees

Impact Fees-Riverbend

Accident Reports
Engineering/Planning Dev Reimbursement
Zoning/BOA Hearings

Franchise Fees

CCATT, Verizon

Trustees Appropriations

MSC Appropriation

Rivertown Ride and Festival

Interest Other

Insurance Reimbursement

Misc Income Gen Fund

Proceeds - Sale of Assets

Loan Proceeds

Restricted Fund Balance Carry Forward
Unreserved Fund Balance Carry Forward
Police Pension Supplement

Pay Job Reimbursement

Budget

$3,100,000.00
$30,000.00
$400,000.00
$25,000.00
$135,000.00
$50,000.00
$200,000.00
$1,000.00
$5,000.00
$25,000.00
$1,000.00
$9,000.00
$30,000.00
$15,000.00
$30,000.00
$5,000.00
$3,000.00
$4,000.00
$125,000.00
$95,000.00
$225,000.00
$669,600.00
$0.00
$75,000.00
$0.00
$1,000.00
$2,500.00
$0.00
$397,501.30
$1,259,186.73
$70,000.00
$40,000.00
$7,027,788.03

REVENUE OVER/UNDER EXPENSE:

YTD Revenue

$3,086,600.19
$26,966.84
$363,597.75
$23,171.02
$126,300.00
$48,300.00
$148,502.75
$635.00
$2,000.00
$4,742.50
$10,200.00
$7,415.00
$17,024.11
$6,875.00
$27,000.00
$6,420.00
$5,373.73
$2,200.00
$51,603.38
$94,026.58
$112,500.00
$364,917.54
$0.00
$166,623.67
$0.00
$17,001.25
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$67,508.27
$83,017.45
$4,870,522.03

Excess/Deficit

($13,399.81)
($3,033.16)
($36,402.25)
($1,828.98)
($8,700.00)
($1,700.00)
($51,497.25)
($365.00)
($3,000.00)
($20,257.50)
$9,200.00
($1,585.00)
($12,975.89)
($8,125.00)
($3,000.00)
$1,420.00
$2,373.73
($1,800.00)
($73,396.62)
($973.42)
($112,500.00)
($304,682.46)
$0.00
$91,623.67
$0.00
$16,001.25
($2,500.00)
$0.00
($397,501.30)
($1,259,186.73)
($2,491.73)
$43,017.45
($2,157,266.00)

$612,635.98

Page 1

%

100%
90%
91%
93%
94%
97%
74%
64%
40%
19%

1020%
82%
57%
46%
90%

128%

179%
55%
41%
99%
50%
54%

0%
222%
0%
1700%
0%

0%

0%

0%
96%

208%
69%



Account ID

PUBLIC SAFETY

10-0101-001-6001
10-0101-001-6002
10-0101-001-6003
10-0101-001-6004
10-0101-001-6005
10-0101-001-6008
10-0101-001-6010
10-0101-001-6015
10-0101-001-6020
10-0101-001-6105
10-0101-001-6110
10-0101-001-6120
10-0101-001-6155
10-0101-001-6170
10-0101-001-6180
10-0101-001-6195
10-0101-001-7066
10-0101-001-7080
10-0101-001-7120
10-0101-001-7200
10-0101-001-8020
10-0101-001-8030
10-0101-001-8050
10-0101-001-8060
10-0101-001-8070
10-0101-001-8085
10-0101-001-8095
10-0101-001-8098
10-0101-002-7005
10-0101-002-7125
10-0101-002-7150
10-0101-002-7220
10-0107-001-6198
10-0107-001-7350
10-0107-004-7355

CITY OF NEW CASTLE
FEBRUARY 2025

FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%

EXPENSE Description

Salaries - PSAF

Salaries Supervision - PSAF

Shift Differential - PSAF

Salaries Civilian - PSAF
Overtime/Contract Holiday - PSAF
Vacation/Sick Sellback - PSAF

FICA Expense - PSAF
Health/Life/Dental Expense - PSAF
Pension Plan - PSAF

Prof Development & Travel - PSAF
Books/Publications/Dues/Tolls - PSAF
Computer - PSAF

Maintenance Contracts - PSAF

Office Supplies/Equipment - PSAF
Postage - PSAF

Phone Service - PSAF

Security Cameras/Citywide - PSAF
Body Cameras - PSAF

Administrative Expense - PSAF
Uniforms/Maintenance - PSAF
Medical Testing - PSAF

Janitorial Services - PSAF

Bldg Repairs/Maint - PSAF
Preventative/Termite/Pest Control - PSAF
Building Heat/Electric - PSAF

Special Events Supplies - PSAF

SEO Pay Job Overtime - PSAF
Investigative/Evidence Testing - PSAF
Range Supplies - PSAF

Motor Fuel - PSAF

Radar/Radio repair - PSAF

Vehicle Parts/Repair - PSAF

Debt Service / Vehicles - PSAF

Leased Color Copier - PSAF

Capital Outlays/Equip & Vehicles - PSAFE

Budget

$1,317,403.63

$346,628.18
$0.00
$55,544.50
$150,000.00
$27,000.00
$145,088.09
$350,117.70
$252,438.00
$5,000.00
$1,500.00
$4,000.00
$14,000.00
$5,000.00
$500.00
$12,539.00
$0.00
$13,400.00
$500.00
$10,000.00
$3,000.00
$6,505.83
$8,000.00
$400.00
$16,000.00
$0.00
$30,000.00
$5,000.00
$11,000.00
$45,000.00
$2,500.00
$15,000.00
$89,980.00
$4,000.00
$25,000.00

YTD
Expended

$811,447.61
$226,226.94
$289.99
$35,961.57
$95,451.43
$11,658.56
$94,183.19
$242,663.00
$157,317.20
$2,428.42
$1,066.50
$1,337.85
$13,911.52
$3,508.44
$401.64
$7,696.50
$5,009.66
$13,349.00
$132.74
$4,907.83
$1,099.00
$8,871.50
$7,325.20
$0.00
$13,141.56
$0.00
$61,532.50
$2,404.17
$6,251.61
$25,509.63
$710.00
$16,244.33
$49,411.88
$2,593.20
$6,669.54

Balance

$505,956.02
$120,401.24
(5289.99)
$19,582.93
$54,548.57
$15,341.44
$50,904.90
$107,454.70
$95,120.80
$2,571.58
$433.50
$2,662.15
$88.48
$1,491.56
$98.36
$4,842.50
($5,009.66)
$51.00
$367.26
$5,092.17
$1,901.00
(52,365.67)
$674.80
$400.00
$2,858.44
$0.00
($31,532.50)
$2,595.83
$4,748.39
$19,490.37
$1,790.00
(51,244.33)
$40,568.12
$1,406.80
$18,330.46

Page 2

% Used

62%
65%
0%
65%
64%
43%
65%
69%
62%
49%
71%
33%
99%
70%
80%
61%
0%
100%
27%
49%
37%
136%
92%
0%
82%
0%
205%
48%
57%
57%
28%
108%
55%
65%
27%



Account ID

PUBLIC SERVICES
10-0200-001-6001
10-0200-001-6003
10-0200-001-6005
10-0200-001-6006
10-0200-001-6008
10-0200-001-6010
10-0200-001-6015
10-0200-001-6020
10-0200-001-6105
10-0200-001-6110
10-0200-001-6120
10-0200-001-6170
10-0200-001-6175
10-0200-001-6180
10-0200-001-6195
10-0200-001-7075
10-0200-001-8020
10-0200-001-8030
10-0200-001-8040
10-0200-001-8050
10-0200-001-8060
10-0200-001-8070
10-0200-003-7085
10-0200-003-7105
10-0200-003-7106
10-0200-003-7155
10-0200-003-7170
10-0200-003-7171
10-0200-003-7195
10-0200-003-7200
10-0200-003-8095
10-0200-003-8105
10-0200-004-8120
10-0203-003-8080

CITY OF NEW CASTLE
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%
EXPENSE Description Budget

PUBLIC SAFETY TOTALS $2,972,044.93
Salaries Supervision - PSERV $149,552.00
Salaries Bldg Code Enforcement - PSERV $93,217.60
Overtime - PSERV $7,000.00
Salaries - PSERV $455,740.00
Vacation & Sick Sellback - PSERV $10,000.00
FICA - PSERV $54,350.98
Health/Life/Dental Expense - PSERV $239,704.27
Pension Plan - PSERV $40,655.05
Professional Dev & Travel - PSERV $4,000.00
Book/Reference Materials - PSERV $1,600.00
Computer & Software Expense - PSERV $7,000.00
Office Supplies/Equip/Printing - PSERV $2,500.00
Operating Supplies - PSERV $8,250.00
Postage - PSERV $1,600.00
Phone Service - PSERV $7,000.00
Reimbursable Private Prop. Maint. - CODE $2,000.00
Medical Testing - PSERV $3,000.00
Janitorial Services - PSERV $4,702.85
Temporary Labor $1,000.00
Bldg Repairs/Sec Maint - PSERV $12,000.00
Preventative/Termite/Pest Control $550.00
Bldg Heat/Electric/Street lights - PSERV $40,000.00
Fuel & Lubricants - PSERV $45,000.00
Landfill Fees/Recycle - PSERV $145,000.00
Yard Waste - PSERV $18,000.00
Safety Equipment/Signs/Markings - PSERV $3,500.00
Small Tools/Equip Repairs/Maint. - PSERV $4,000.00
Radio Repairs - PSERV $250.00
Truck/Vehicle Repair/Maint. - PSERV $35,000.00
Uniforms/Maintenance - PSERV $7,000.00
Special Event Overtime - PSERV $1,500.00
Street Materials - PSERV $10,000.00
Street Repairs - PSERV $1,000.00
Sand & Abrasives/ Snow & Ice Control $5,000.00

YTD
Expended

$1,930,713.71

$97,958.14
$8,563.04
$5,787.62
$285,955.87
$4,094.48
$28,399.93
$135,142.24
$23,921.53
$0.00
$0.00
$843.24
$1,812.54
$4,126.51
$1,296.30
$4,672.52
$500.00
$498.00
$1,844.33
$0.00
$5,663.64
$510.46
$35,247.13
$23,640.65
$81,614.40
$8,578.50
$675.57
$1,400.92
$0.00
$22,563.77
$5,607.43
$2,546.03
$505.26
$2,900.00
$7,293.32

Page 3

Balance % Used
$1,041,331.22 65%
$51,593.86 66%
$84,654.56 9%
$1,212.38 83%
$169,784.13 63%
$5,905.52 41%
$25,951.05 52%
$104,562.03 56%
$16,733.52 59%
$4,000.00 0%
$1,600.00 0%
$6,156.76 12%
$687.46 73%
$4,123.49 50%
$303.70 81%
$2,327.48 67%
$1,500.00 25%
$2,502.00 17%
$2,858.52 39%
$1,000.00 0%
$6,336.36 47%
$39.54 93%
$4,752.87 88%
$21,359.35 53%
$63,385.60 56%
$9,421.50 48%
$2,824.43 19%
$2,599.08 35%
$250.00 0%
$12,436.23 64%
$1,392.57 80%
($1,046.03) 170%
$9,494.74 5%

($1,900.00)  290%
($2,293.32)  146%



Account ID

10-0203-003-8090

PW PARKS & PUBLIC PROPERTY

10-0204-003-7060
10-0204-003-7061
10-0204-003-7100
10-0204-003-7430
10-0204-003-7432

CAPITAL OUTLAY - PSERV

10-0205-004-7355
10-0205-004-7446
10-0205-004-7533
10-0205-004-7534
10-0205-004-7536

YTD
Expended
$0.00

$117,422.51
$15,598.39
$289.05
$78,693.64
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$67,299.53
$150,000.00

FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%
EXPENSE Description Budget
Outside Contractors / Snow & Ice Control $1,000.00
Equipment - PARKS $215,000.00
Pruning/Planting Trees - ROW/PARKS $32,000.00
Playground Maintenance/Wood Carpet-PARKS $10,000.00
Contract Maintenance - City Prop/PARKS $111,752.00
Dog Park - PARKS $85,000.00
Capital Outlays/Equip & Vehicles - PSERV $11,000.00
Handicap Curb Ramps $25,000.00
Debt Service / Vehicle lease - PSERV $96,996.00
Debt Service / Road Repair -GO Bond 2018 $225,000.00
Storm Drainage/MS4 - PSERV $150,000.00

PUBLIC SERVICES TOTALS

MAYOR AND COUNCIL

10-0301-001-6001
10-0301-001-6010
10-0301-001-6101
10-0301-001-6105
10-0301-001-6106
10-0301-001-6550
10-0301-001-6560
10-0301-001-7024
10-0301-001-7040
10-0301-001-7055
10-0301-001-7065
10-0301-003-6185
10-0301-003-6190
10-0301-003-7010
10-0301-003-7011
10-0301-003-7042

Salaries - M&C

FICA Expense - M&C

Advertising - M&C

Prof Development - M&C
Association Dues - M&C

Economic Dev Activities - M&C

Sea Level Rise Task Force

General Code Updates - M&C
Contributions - M&C

Meeting Security/Rental Fees - M&C
Equipment Purchases - M&C
Election Expenses - M&C
Rivertowns Ride & Festival - M&C
Annual Calendar/Monthly Newsletter - M&C
Transcription Services - M&C

Fees to Good Will Riverbend - M&C

CITY CLERK / CITY TREASURER

10-0302-001-6000
10-0302-001-6001
10-0302-001-6010
FINANCE

CITY CLERK / CITY TREASURER
Salaries - CLERK/TREAS
FICA Expense - CLERK/TREAS

$2,383,420.75

$20,100.00
$1,540.00
$11,300.00
$500.00
$4,200.00
$17,107.67
$3,500.00
$3,500.00
$99,250.00
$7,000.00
$0.00
$5,000.00
$0.00
$4,350.00
$13,971.56
$6,000.00

$0.00
$2,100.00
$160.00

$85,149.01
$1,318,615.50

$13,142.70
$1,005.38
$11,493.25
$194.04
$4,200.00
$9,842.83
$6,605.64
$4,612.43
$99,150.00
$3,799.97
$114.93
$423.14
$0.00
$4,498.93
$14,250.59
$4,000.00

$0.00
$1,373.09
$105.06

Balance

$1,000.00

$97,577.49
$16,401.61

$9,710.95
$33,058.36
$85,000.00

$11,000.00
$25,000.00
$29,696.47
$75,000.00
$64,850.99
51,064,805.25

$6,957.30
$534.62
($193.25)
$305.96
$0.00
$7,264.84
($3,105.64)
($1,112.43)
$100.00
$3,200.03
($114.93)
$4,576.86
$0.00
($148.93)
($279.03)
$2,000.00

$0.00
$726.91
$54.94

Page 4

% Used

0%

55%
49%
3%
70%
0%

0%
0%
69%
67%
57%
55%

65%
65%
102%
39%
100%
58%
189%
132%
100%
54%
0%
8%
0%
103%
102%
67%

0%
65%
66%



CITY OF NEW CASTLE Fage >
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%

Account ID EXPENSE Description Budget EpreTn[::Ie d Balance % Used
10-0303-003-7090 FY Audit - FIN $35,000.00 $36,972.54 ($1,972.54) 106%
ADMINISTRATION
10-0304-001-6001 Salaries - ADMIN $390,463.86 $247,364.64 $143,099.22 63%
10-0304-001-6005 Overtime - ADMIN $0.00 $54.10 (554.10) 0%
10-0304-001-6008 Sellback Vacation & Sick - ADMIN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-0304-001-6010 FICA Expense - ADMIN $30,106.48 $17,748.72 $12,357.76 59%
10-0304-001-6015 Health/Life/Dental Expense - ADMIN $64,411.63 $48,222.53 $16,189.10 75%
10-0304-001-6020 Pension Plan - ADMIN $21,344.44 $12,676.09 $8,668.35 59%
10-0304-001-6100 Employee Retention $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 0%
10-0304-001-6105 Professional Development - ADMIN $4,000.00 $524.42 $3,475.58 13%
10-0304-001-6115 City Administrator Expense - ADMIN $3,000.00 $3,081.64 (581.64) 103%
10-0304-001-6120 Computer, Hardware & IT Services - ADMIN $60,000.00 $9,645.10 $50,354.90 16%
10-0304-001-6130 Dues & Publications - ADMIN $1,000.00 $370.00 $630.00 37%
10-0304-001-6170 Office Supplies/Printing - ADMIN $5,000.00 $3,986.34 $1,013.66 80%
10-0304-001-6180 Postage - ADMIN $3,500.00 $2,529.91 $970.09 72%
10-0304-001-6195 Telephone/Internet Service - ADMIN $5,579.36 $3,113.98 $2,465.38 56%
10-0304-001-7120 Administrative Expense - ADMIN $5,500.00 $5,129.11 $370.89 93%
10-0304-001-8020 Medical Testing - ADMIN $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0%
10-0304-001-8030 Janitorial Services - ADMIN $3,997.35 $1,436.57 $2,560.78 36%
10-0304-001-8050 Building Repairs - ADMIN $3,500.00 $1,554.58 $1,945.42 44%
10-0304-001-8055 Bldg Security Maintenance - ADMIN $5,000.00 $2,330.28 $2,669.72 47%
10-0304-001-8060 Preventative/Termite/Pest Control -ADMIN $900.00 $88.69 $811.31 10%
10-0304-001-8070 Building Heat - ADMIN $4,500.00 $3,906.64 $593.36 87%
10-0304-002-7085 Fuel & Oil - ADMIN $6,000.00 $2,142.67 $3,857.33 36%
10-0304-003-6122 Software Support - ADMIN $38,000.00 $30,159.56 $7,840.44 79%
10-0304-004-7350 Lease Copier ADMIN $3,500.00 $2,208.32 $1,291.68 63%
HUMAN RESOURCES
10-0308-001-6101 Advertising- HR $1,500.00 $948.17 $551.83 63%
10-0308-001-6130 Dues & Publications- HR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
10-0308-001-6183 Temporary Labor/Consultant- HR $12,000.00 $2,355.00 $9,645.00 20%
10-0308-001-7404 Employee Training Programs- HR $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0%
10-0308-001-8096 Contract Reimbursements- HR $3,000.00 $1,450.00 $1,550.00 48%
10-0308-001-8098 Pre-employ Background Investigation- HR $300.00 $144.00 $156.00 48%
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
10-0801-001-6101 Advertising - BOA $1,000.00 $200.00 $800.00 20%
10-0801-001-6105 Professional Fees - BOA $10,000.00 $1,247.88 $8,752.12 12%



Account ID

BUILDING MAINTENANCE

10-0901-001-7045
10-0901-001-7135
10-0901-001-8077
10-0901-003-8082
10-0901-004-8085
INSURANCE

10-1001-001-7145
10-1001-001-8055
10-1001-001-8065
10-1001-001-8130
10-1001-001-8135

PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

10-1002-001-8011
10-1002-001-8025
10-1002-003-6140
10-1002-003-6141
10-1002-003-6145

PLANNING COMMISSION

10-1102-003-6105
10-1102-003-6190
10-1102-003-7004

HISTORIC AREA COMMISSION

10-1103-003-6105
10-1103-003-6140
10-1103-003-6162
10-1103-003-6190

BOARD OF HEALTH

10-1109-001-6105
10-1109-001-6180
10-1109-001-6170
10-1109-001-7080

LONG TERM RESERVES

10-1110-004-6124
10-1110-004-6125

YTD
Expended

$1,906.92
$0.00
$0.00
$22,951.31
$5,013.68

$5,646.00
$8,870.00
$97,226.96
$67,760.00
$4,567.46

$15,879.45
$78,655.88
$930.00
$0.00
$150.00

$110.00
$32,215.23
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$17,946.25
$2,517.15

$0.00
$548.73
$0.00
$258.36

$25,000.00

FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%
EXPENSE Description Budget
County Sewer Assessments - BLDG $3,000.00
Contractual Services - BLDG $6,000.00
Town Hall Heat - BLDG $0.00
Capital Reserves - BLDG $134,500.00
Battery Park / Porta Potties - BLDG $5,000.00
Public Officials Liability - INS $6,000.00
Police Liability - INS $9,000.00
Property and Liability - INS $151,000.00
Workers Compensation - INS $150,000.00
Unemployment Insurance - INS $11,000.00
City Engineer - CONT $40,000.00
City Solicitor - CONT $80,000.00
AFSCME Contract Negotiations - CONT $5,000.00
HR/Other Legal - CONT $5,000.00
FOP Contract Negotiations - CONT $0.00
Professional Dev & Training - PC $500.00
Contractual Services - PC $25,000.00
Comprehensive Plan Update - PC $5,000.00
Prof Development - HAC $500.00
Historic Preservation $7,000.00
Architect - HAC $14,500.00
Meeting Security $2,600.00
Professional Development - BOH $500.00
Postage - BOH $1,200.00
Supplies - BOH $0.00
Meeting Security - BOH $840.00
Accrued Benefits $25,000.00
Restricted Reserves / Capital $0.00

ADMINISTRATION TOTALS

$1,672,322.35

$0.00
$1,008,556.84

Page 6

Balance % Used
$1,093.08 64%
$6,000.00 0%

$0.00 0%

$111,548.69 17%

(513.68) 100%

$354.00 94%
$130.00 99%
$53,773.04 64%
$82,240.00 45%
$6,432.54 42%
$24,120.55 40%
$1,344.12 98%
$4,070.00 19%
$5,000.00 0%
($150.00) 0%
$390.00 22%
(57,215.23) 129%
$5,000.00 0%
$500.00 0%
$7,000.00 0%
($3,446.25) 124%
$82.85 97%
$500.00 0%
$651.27 46%
$0.00 0%
$581.64 31%

$0.00 100%
$0.00 0%
$663,765.51 60%



CITY OF NEW CASTLE rage 7
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%

YTD
Account ID EXPENSE Description Budget Balance % Used
Expended

FINAL TOTALS $7,027,788.03  54,257,886.05  $2,769,901.98



CITY OF NEW CASTLE Pages
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%
Account ID Description Budget YTD Balance
MUNICIPAL STREET AID FUND 20
Revenue:
20-0000-500-0000 Municipal Street Aid $118,000.00 $0.00 (5118,000.00)
20-0000-500-0001 Municipal Street Aid Reserve carry over $499,373.33 $0.00 (5499,373.33)
Expense:
20-0208-001-8121 MSAF Expenses $118,000.00 $0.00 $118,000.00
20-0208-001-8125 MSAF Reserve Expenses $367,200.00 $0.00 $367,200.00
COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION FUND 23
Revenue:
23-0000-500-0000 CTF 24-P-PROG-67 GoodWill Fire Co. $60,000.00 $54,303.00 $5,697.00
Expense:
23-0205-004-7540 CTF 24-P-PROG-67 GoodWill Fire Co. $60,000.00 $54,303.00 $5,697.00
DNREC FY22 BOND FUND 24
Revenue:
24-0000-500-0000 DNREC (FY22 Bond) Cap Improv/Trans Trust $80,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00
Expense:
24-0205-001-7541 DNREC (FY22 BOND) / Battery Park Dock $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
24-0205-001-8015 DNREC (FY22 BOND) / Floating Pier $80,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00
COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION FUND 25
Revenue:
25-0000-500-0000 CTF P-PROG-01 (Road Repairs) $65,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00
Expense:
25-0207-001-8120 CTF P-PROG-01 (Road Repairs) $65,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00
DNREC FY25 BOND FUND 26
Revenue:
26-0000-500-0000 CRF (FY25 BOND) Roads /Playground /PSAF $1,299,000.00 $62,778.75 $1,236,221.25
Expense:
26-0205-001-7540 CRF (FY25 Bond) Road Repair $862,000.00 $778.75 $861,221.25
26-0205-001-7541 CRF (FY25 Bond) Battery Park Playground $375,000.00 $0.00 $375,000.00
26-0205-001-7542 CRF (FY25 Bond) Police Renovation $62,000.00 $62,000.00 $0.00
DNREC FY23 BOND FUND 27
Revenue:
27-0000-500-0000 CRF (FY23 BOND) $605,654 $128,428.98 $71,273.24 $57,155.74
Expense:
27-0205-001-7541 CRF (FY23 BOND) Wharf Cameras $0.00 $0.00 $0.00



CITY OF NEW CASTLE Page
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%

Account ID Description Budget YTD Balance
27-0205-001-7542 CRF (FY23 BOND) City Wide Cameras $28,428.98 $0.00 $28,428.98
27-0205-001-8015 CRF (FY23 BOND) Floating Pier $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

DNREC FY24 BOND FUND 28

Revenue:

28-0000-500-0000 CRF (FY24 BOND) $765,000 $765,000.00 $1,281.16 $763,718.84
Expense:

28-0205-001-7540 CRF (FY24 BOND) Misc Capital Projects $765,000.00 $1,281.16 $763,718.84

DNREC FY18 BOND FUND 32

Revenue:

32-0000-500-0000 FY2018 DNREC Bond Fund / Floating Pier $470,074.19 $243,085.61 $226,988.58
Expense:

32-0205-004-8015 FY2018 DNREC Bond Fund / Floating Pier $470,074.19 $242,786.87 $227,287.32

DEMA / PDM FUND 40

Revenue:

40-0000-500-0000 DEMA FY19 PDM Grant $25,556.58 $12,829.54 $12,727.04
Expense:

40-0205-004-7536 Contractual Service - DEMA FY19 PDM $25,556.58 $12,829.54 $12,727.04

DELDOT /FY25 CYCLING INNOVATION FUND 41

Revenue:

41-0000-500-0000 DelDOT CYCLING Trail Feasibility Study $23,000.00 $0.00 $23,000.00
Expense:

41-0205-004-8015 DelDOT CYCLING Trail Feasibility Study $23,000.00 $0.00 $23,000.00

DEMA /CYBERSECURITY GRANT FUND 42

Revenue:

42-0000-500-0000 DEMA FY25 CYBERSECURITY GRANT $17,773.00 $11,008.10 $6,764.90
Expense:

42-0205-004-7536 DEMA FY25 CYCBERSECURITY GRANT $17,773.00 $11,008.10 $6,764.90

CJC FUND 80

Revenue:

80-0000-500-0000 CJC - 2023-AR-P/T-3188 Grant $330,549.20 $82,560.09 $247,989.11
Expense:

80-0101-001-7060 CJC/2023-AR-P/T-3188 $330,549.20 $81,177.73 $249,371.47

Revenue:

DPS / VIOLENT CRIME GRANT FUND 83



CITY OF NEW CASTLE Page 10
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%
Account ID Description Budget YTD Balance
83-0000-500-0000 FCVC GRANT /V-04-24 $10,349.92 $19,709.92 ($9,360.00)
Expense:
83-0101-001-6001 V-04-24 Overtime $0.00 $2,238.23 (52,238.23)
83-0101-001-6010 V-04-24 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
83-0101-001-8050 V-04-24 EQUIPMENT/TRAVEL $0.00 $8,111.69 (58,111.69)
SALLE GRANT FUND 84
Revenue:
84-0000-500-0000 SALLE Grant $6,000.00 $5,655.42 $344.58
Expense:
84-0104-001-6000 SALLE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
84-0104-001-6005 Overtime - SALLE $0.00 $325.00 (5325.00)
84-0104-001-6010 FICA expense - SALLE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
84-0104-001-7060 Equipment/Rental - SALLE $6,000.00 $5,014.92 $985.08
HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANT FUND 85
Revenue:
85-0000-500-0000 Highway Safety Grants $8,000.00 $12,305.09 (54,305.09)
Expense:
85-0102-001-6005 Overtime - Hightway Safety $8,000.00 $8,813.81 (5813.81)
85-0102-001-7060 Equipment - Highway Safety $0.00 $3,491.28 (53,491.28)
EIDE GRANT FUND 88
Revenue:
88-0000-500-0000 EIDE Grant $3,902.50 $0.00 $3,902.50
Expense:
88-0103-001-6000 EIDE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
88-0103-001-6005 Overtime - EIDE $3,902.50 $0.00 $3,902.50
88-0103-001-6010 FICA Expense - EIDE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
88-0103-001-7060 Equipment - EIDE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
88-0103-001-7062 Auto Rental/Buy Money - EIDE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
DPS / VIOLENT CRIME GRANT FUND 89
Revenue:
89-0000-500-0000 FCVC GRANT /V-67-25 $36,853.60 $2,560.00 $34,293.60
Expense:
89-0101-001-6005 Overtime / V-67-25 $36,853.60 $2,560.00 $34,293.60



CITY OF NEW CASTLE Page 11
FEBRUARY 2025
FY25 YTD BUDGET REPORT - 67%
Account ID Description Budget YTD Balance
89-0101-001-7060 Equipment/Training - V-67-25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
GIA/SEPARATION DAY GRANT FUND 95
Revenue:
95-0000-500-0000 Separation Day Grant $36,000.00 $42,046.84 (56,046.84)
95-0000-500-0001 Separation Day -Fees/Contributions $33,000.00 $16,350.00 $16,650.00
95-0000-500-0002 Separation Day - Admission/Sales $8,500.00 $2,951.82 $5,548.18
Expense:
95-1108-001-6105 Professional Fees - SEPDAY $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
95-1108-001-6170 Supplies - SEPDAY $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
95-1108-001-6180 Postage - SEPDAY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
95-1108-001-6185 Printing/Publications/Adv - SEPDAY $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00
95-1108-001-6190 Rent - SEPDAY $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00
95-1108-001-7120 Administrative Expense - SEPDAY $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00
95-1108-001-7222 Police/EMS/Public Works - SEPDAY $8,500.00 $0.00 $8,500.00
95-1108-001-8065 Insurance - SEPDAY $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00




TO: Antonina Tantillo, City Administrator

FROM: Jeff Bergstrom,
Building Official
DATE: March 6, 2025
RE: January — February 2025 Activity

Forty building permit applications were processed in January and February for
approximately 638,043.52 worth of construction, and $14,809.81 in fees were collected.

Two hundred and twenty 2025 business licenses were processed, resulting in fees of
$38,739.00.

Eighty-two 2025 Rental licenses were processed, resulting in fees of $34,132.50.

Nine Certificates of Occupancy were issued, following required inspections, resulting in
fees of $800.00.

Meetings attended included the Historic Area Commission on the 13" of February.
The department made about 110 formal inspections during the period.

In addition to regular workload, other projects included: public works inspections & issues;
development & site work issues; dike maintenance issues, and vacant building issues.



New Castle City Building Department / 220 Delaware Street / New Castle, DE 19720-4816
Phone (302) 322-9813 Fax (302) 323-9814

BUILDING OFFICIAL'S REPORT

January — February 2025

To: Members of New Castle City Council

Submitted by: Jeffrey Bergstrom, Building Official
Number of Building Permits Issued................ 40
Estimated Cost of Work....................... $638,043.52
Fees Collected..........ccoeevvivieecciiinene, $14,809.81

Inspections Performed (by type)

Site/Footing/Masonry............ccccceevvvvvnnns 53
Framing/Structural..............ccccceeeiiieennne. 12
Plumbing/HVAC........ccooovviiieieeeeeeee 35
Final/Certificates of Occupancy............. 9

cc: Building Report File
City Council

hitp.//newcastlecity.defaware.gov/




License No.

JANUARY & FEBRUARY 2025 BUSINESS LICENSES

Business Location

Paid Amount

25000431 RC FABRICATORS INC 824 LOCUST ST WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000432 LORZO LANDSCAPE 4148 MILLCREEK RD HOCKESSEN SE 50.00
25000433 CPR RESTORATION CLEANING SERV 8421 HEGERMAN ST PHILADELPIA PA 360.00
25000434 EA ENGINEERING SCIENCE ET AL 225 SHILLING CIR HUNT VALLEY MD 360.00
25000435 ALEX'S SEAFOOD & BBQ 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000436 ALEX'S SEAFOOD & CLAM BAR 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000437 WIG DEPARTMENT 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000438 MUSICALLY SOUND LLC 53 E 2ND ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000439 PRETZEL FACTORY 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000440 ZIGGY'S INC 885 NEW LONDON RD NEWARK DE 90.00
25000441 GUARDIAN CONSTRUCTION CO INC PO BOX 11607 WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000442 BERLEY SECURITY SYSTEMS INC 6701 GOVERNOR PRINTZ BLVD WILM DE 90.00
25000443 CHESAPEAKE BURIAL VAULT INC 114 RAILROAD AVE BARCLAY MD 360.00
25000444 EDIS COMPANY 110 S. POPLAR ST WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000445 COLONIAL FINANCIAL & TAX SERV 700 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000446 MCCREA EQUIPMENT CO INC 4463 BEECH RD TEMPLE HILL MD 360.00
25000447 DENLINGER FISHER BUILDERS 94 MOUNT PLEASANT RD PARADISE PA 90.00
25000448 TGI FRIDAY'S 128 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000449 LEE'S PRODUCE 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000450 QUALITY RESTAURANT SERVICE PO BOX 298 NORTH EAST MD 210.00
25000451 EHRLICH PEST CONTROL 955 DAWSON DE STE 2 NEWARK DE 50.00
25000452 TRANS PLUS INC 423 W 7TH ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000453 TACO BELL #17255 116 N DUPONT HIGHWAY NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000454 DREAM BACKERY LLC 222 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000455 ANGELO J RISPOLI CONSTRUCTION 516 HARMONY ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000456 FORAKER & SONS 41 LOCHVIEW DR BEAR DE 50.00
25000457 ACTION SECURITY 100 PEOPLES DR NEWARK DE 90.00
25000458 ESG INC 2 KING CT NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000459 INDEPENDENT ELECTRICAL SERVICE 1800 WALNUT ST WILMINGTON DE 210.00
25000460 CAVAN CONSTRUCTION CO INC 274 BODLEY RD ASTON PA 210.00
25000461 BUILDING PRESERVATION SER 128 MYRTLE AVE WEST GROVE PA 50.00
25000462 VSROOFING INC 33622 BRIAR CT N FRANKFORD DE 50.00
25000463 AR MYERS GLASWS 284 PENCADER DR NEWARK DE 210.00
25000464 BENJAMIN FRANKLIN PLUMBING 410 MECO DR WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000465 ABC COMFORT SOLUTIONS 1119 MADRID ST TOWNSEND DE 210.00
25000466 CALVERT HEATING & COOLING 410 MECO DR WILMINGTON DE 210.00
25000467 MICHAEL VASSALLO ELECTRICAL 4 MILL PARK CT NEWARK DE 90.00
25000468 ANTONIO'S LAWN SERVICE LLC 8 W 9TH ST NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000469 PACKETT LLC 1 PACKETT ALY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000470 CONDUCTIVE ELECTRICAL CONTRACT 59 ELWOOD DR SMYRNA DE 50.00
25000471 DIAMOND FINISHES LLC 144 PINE VALLEY DR MIDDLETOWN DE 50.00
25000472 JOHN E STEEL JR. INC 1216 BAYVIEW DR MIDDLETOWN DE 90.00
25000473 DE HARRIS SERVICES INC 204 ROUTE 45 SALEM NJ 360.00
25000474 APTIVE ENVIRONMENTAL LLC 5132 N 300 W STE 150 PROVO UT 210.00
25000475 DOLLAR GENERAL STORE $12299 718 FERRY CUT OFF NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000476 KFC RESTURANT 112 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000477 VERMIN LLC PO BOX 405 ODESSA DE 50.00
25000478 DST CONSTRUCTION 303 CLINTON ST DELAWARE CITY DE 50.00
25000479 R & D CONSTRUCTION CO 503 N MILL RD KENNETT SQ PA 360.00
25000480 H&E EQUIPMENT SERVICES INC 9 BELLECOR DR NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000481 PACE SERVICES 105 CARSON DR BEAR DE 360.00
25000482 HILSIDE OIL CO 40 BROOKHILL DR NEWARK DE 50.00
25000483 GUARDIAN PROTECTION SER INC 174 THORN HILL RD WARRENDALE PA 210.00
25000484 LIMO EXCHANGE INC 800 WASHINTON ST NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000485 BRIDGEWATER JEWELERS 318 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000486 HERMANN WAREHOUSE CORP 350 ANCHOR MILL RD NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000487 HOP ENERGY LLC 4 INTERNATIONAL DR STE 210 RYE BROOK NY 360.00
25000488 SPELLBOUND CURIOSITIES 316 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000489 LONG FENCE CO INC 8545 EDGEWORTH DR CAPITOL HTS MD 50.00
25000490 BOULEN SERVICES LLC 107 SANDY DR BLDG 700 NEWARK DE 360.00
25000491 CIPRIANOS KITCHEN IMPROVEMENTS 110 WATER ST WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000492 VICTORY ELECTRICAL SERVICES 14 ERSKINE CT NEWARK DE 50.00
25000493 STYLE EXPO 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000494 FROMMRE LLC 113 STUYVESANT AVE NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000495 A3 COMMUNICATIONS INC 151 GARRISON OAK DR DOVER DE 360.00
25000496 N MALLARI GENERAL CONTRACTORS 1031 RED LION RD NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000497 THINKSECURENET LLC 16557 COASTAL HWY LEWES DE 210.00
25000498 PORTO-FINO PIUZZA RESTURANT 718 FERRY CUT OFF NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000499 JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE PROTECTION (PO BOX 3042 BOCA RATON FL 360.00
25000500 THE NUT & CANDY DEPOT INC 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000501 RENOVATE LLC 786 OLD SCHOOL HOUSE RD MIDDLETOWN DE 50.00
25000502 TEODOZOW BROTHERS LLC 11 TRAVERNIER DR NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000503 GERBER MASONRY 101 FALLON AVE WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000504 ALLIED UNIVERSAL SECURITY SERV 251 LITTLE FALLS DR WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000505 GAWINSKI HOME IMPROVEMENTS 10 VAN DYKE DR NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000506 CHOCTAW-KAUL DISTRIBUTION CO 501 SHIPS LANDING WAY NEW CASTLE DE 360.00




25000507 THE WHITING-TURNER CONTRACTING 131 CONTINENTAL DR NEWARK DE 360.00
25000508 AIR TECH REFRIGERATION & MECH 404 BOWLEYS QUARTERS RD BALTIMORE MD 360.00
25000509 DELAWARE CONSTRUCITON SER. LLC 58 ALBE DR STE C NEWARK DE 90.00
25000510 BLACKBURN REFINISHING LLC 414 MILLTOWN RD WILMINGTONDE 50.00
25000511 FEATHERS GROUP LLC 13 SHELDRAKE RD NEWARK DE 50.00
25000512 ROSE OF SHARON HAIR 735 FERRY CUT OFF NEW CASTLE DR 50.00
25000513 CHRIS VITALO GENERAL CONTR 58 RED MILL RD NEWARK DE 50.00
25000514 CIMEMAPLEX TECHNOLOGIES CORP 2398 RIDGE RD SPRING CITY PA 210.00
25000515 COLONIAL CONSTRUCTION CO 126 MIDDLEBORO RD WILMINGTON DE 90.00
25000516 ACE CHIMNEY SWEEPS INC 804 E PULASKI HIGHWAY ELKTON MD 90.00
25000517 HARVEST CHRISTIAN ACADEMY 1101 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000518 RENEWAL BY ANDERSON 761 FIFTH AVE KING OF PRUSSIA PA 360.00
25000519 DEASCANIS HOMES INC 2 AMERIT DR NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000520 TIRE RACK 300 ANCHOR MILL RD NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000521 DIANE'S HAIR STUDIO 1204 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000522 TRUST RENOVATIONS & REMODELING 1122 E FOUNDS ST TOWNSEND DE 50.00
25000523 B.W. ELECTRIC INC 15340 S DUPONT HWY HARRINGTON DE 360.00
25000524 EASTERN STATES CONSTRUCTION 702 FIRST STATE BLVD WILMINGTON DE 210.00
25000525 JOHNNY'S INT'L FOOD MARKET 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000526 LIBERTY COHEN FURNITURE 106 LUKENS DR NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000527 LAWN DOCTOR OF WILMINGTON DE 203 N DUPONT HWY NEWPORT DE 50.00
25000528 STEELWAY CELLAR DOORS 290 EAST CHURCH RD KING OF PRUSSIA PA 210.00
25000529 FEDERAL MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS |229 HILLVIEW AVE NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000530 BED BATH& GIFT LLC 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000531 COCHRAN REALTY LLC 1917 CAPITOL TRAIL NEWARK DE 50.00
25000532 POSITIVE PAINTING INC 436 E AYRE ST WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000533 MANOR HILL PROPERTIES LLC 32 W 3RD ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000534 INDUSTRIAL CAULK & SEAL INC 302 BROAD ST DELTA PA 360.00
25000535 I.D. GRIFFITH INC 735 S MARKET ST WILMINGTONDE 360.00
25000536 PADDY'S LLC 2702 KIRKWOOD HWY NEWARK DE 360.00
25000537 TUSIBROS INC 1 COPPER DR WILMINGTON DE 210.00
25000538 REDSTEEL HVAC INC 15 SHERBPRNE RD REHOBOTH DE 50.00
25000539 ADT LLC 140 QUIGLEY BLVD NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000540 STANDARD DISTRIBUTION CO INC 100 S MEWS DR NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000541 ZENITH HOME CORP 400 LUKENS DR NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000542 MAMMA GINA PIZZA 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000543 ABLE ENGINEERING SERVICE 251 LITTLE FALLS DR WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000544 UNION WHOLESALE CO 500 E FRONT ST WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000545 TUPP SIGNS INC 457 E NEW CHURCHMANS RD NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000546 ANGEL FLOWER 9 LLC 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000547 DRYWALL ASSOCIATES LTD INC 58 ALBE DR STE A NEWARK DE 50.00
25000548 STORM MASTER GUTTERS 1860 OLD CUTHBERT RD STES 50 COLUMBUS OH 90.00
25000549 BASEMENT WATERPROOFING INC 109 E WHEEL RD BEL AIR MD 360.00
25000550 SOBIESKI LIFE SAFETY LLC 1325 OLD COOCH'S BRIDGE RD WILM DE 360.00
25000551 TRUSTEE MANAGEMENT SVC LLC 122 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000552 AFFORDABLE HEATING & AC INC 1700 WILMINGTON RD NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000553 UNIVERSAL ATLANTIC SYSTEMS INC 45 W INDUSTRIAL BLVD PAOLI PA 360.00
25000554 STAPEN CONSTRUCTION INC 44 STONEWOLD WAY WILM DE 50.00
25000555 WASTE MASTERS SOLUTIONS LLC 19 DAVIDSON LN NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000556 J.W. TULL CONTRACTING SERVICE 1203 PHILADELPHIA PK WILMINGTON DE 210.00
25000557 ANTHONY & SYLVAN POOLS CORP 3739 N EASTON RD WARMINISTER PA 360.00
25000558 BLEND KINGZ BARBER SALON 1204 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000559 JCR SYSTEMS LLC 621 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000560 APPLE SIGNS INC 404 SERENDIPITY DR MILLERSVILLE MD 360.00
25000561 RANCHO AZTECA 222 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000562 ALLEGION ACCESS TECHNOLOGIES 65 SCOTT SWAMP RD FARMINGTON CT 50.00
25000563 PENN-JERSEY AUTO STORE 800 WILMINGTON RD NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000564 COOPER BROTHERS INC 62 SOUTHGATE BLVD NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000565 ACW CORPORATION PO BOX 38 YORKLYN DE 360.00
25000566 SIMON ROOFING & SHEET METAL 70 KARAGO AVE YOUNGSTOWN OH 90.00
25000567 TRASH TECH 755 GOVERNOR LEA RD NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000568 R A CHANCE PLUMBING INC 23 PARKWAY CIR STE 5 ASTON PA 90.00
25000569 FIRST STATE BUILDING PROD, LLC 9796 NANTICOKE BUS PK DR COLUMBUS OH 90.00
25000570 EAST COAST PLUMBING & HVAC INC 26 BROOKHILL DR NEWARK DE 360.00
25000571 STAPLEFORD ELECTRIC 3847 EVELYN DR WILMINGTON DE 90.00
25000572 LEN THE PLUMBER 7 CHELSEA PARKWAY BOOTHWYN PA 360.00
25000573 ACTION EVENTS 7 ARBUTUS AVE NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000574 IRON MOUNTAIN INFO MGMT LLC 250 ANCHOR MILL RD NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000575 ELECTRICAL SOLUTIONS 2507 OLD MILLTOWN RD WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000576 MICHAEL A MEKULSKI GEN CONTR 25 MADRIGAL DR NEWARK DE 50.00
25000577 NATISHA NICOLE BEAUTY SALON 2 AMERIT DR NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000578 CABERNET CANDLES 410 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000579 LYON & CONKLIN CO 251 LITTLE FALLS DR WILMINGTON DE 210.00
25000580 THE DAVEY TREE EXPERT CO 1500 N MANTUA ST KENT OH 360.00
25000581 ZOOSCAPELLC 551 MEWS DR NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000583 BRANYWINE HEATING & AIRLLC 105 N COLONIAL AVE WILMINGTON DE 90.00
25000584 THE NEW CASTLE WEEKLY 201 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000585 3 PHASE EXCEL ELEVATOR CORP 60 SHAWMUT RD STE 1 CANTON MA 360.00
25000586 CUES INC 55 MCCULLOUGH DR NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000587 TRI-STATE FABRICTN & MACH LLC 17 MCMILLAN WAY NEWARK DE 210.00




25000588 BAHR PLUMBING SERVICES LLC 5 PAGE PLACE WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000589 FIN OUTDOOR RECREATION LLC 15 N MAIN ST NORTH EAST MD 50.00
25000590 BACKYARD STORAGE SOLUTIONS LLC 1700 TAYLOR LN CINNAMINSON NJ 50.00
25000591 OLD NEW CASTLE ELECTRIC 110 E 2ND ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000592 STROBERT TREE SERVICE 1806 ZEBLEY RD WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000593 COMMUNICATIONS CONST GROUP 111 GREENONT RD RISING SUN MD 360.00
25000594 SUPER GARDEN LANSCAPING LLC 824 WATKINS WAY NEWARK DE 90.00
25000595 CIRILLO BROS INC 761 GRANTHAM LN NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000596 MIKE ROZENKO 265 LINDEN AVE WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000597 KRIENEN-GRIFFITH INC 101 W 6TH ST NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000598 KC SIGN COMPANY 142 CONCHESTER HWY ASTON PA 210.00
25000599 ULTRACHEM INC 900 CENTERPOINT BLVD NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000601 JOHN WALLACE HAIR SALON 632 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000602 ELMER SCHULTZ SERVICES 36 BELMONT AVE WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000603 TRE-COUNTY TERMITE & PEST CONT 187 DELAWARE AVE CARNEY'S POINT NJ 360.00
25000604 THE ROOFERS INC 404 MECO DR WILMINGTON DE 210.00
25000605 FASHION 4 LESS 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000606 VESSELS & VARIATIONS 131 W 9TH ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000607 FASHION LINK JEWELERS LLC 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000608 PSIELECTRIC INC 300 COMMERCIAL DR WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000609 SWEET BABY ABBY 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000610 EZTREAD 520 SOUTH ST NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000611 326 ASSOCIATES L P 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 90.00
25000612 ETHEL LOLALLC 38 E 5TH ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000613 HOLOGIC INC 250 CAMPUS DR MARLBOROUGH MA 360.00
25000614 IRON MOUNTAIN INFO MGMT LLC 1400 JOHNSON WAY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000615 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF DE INC 300 HARVEY DR WILMINGTON DE 360.00
25000616 D C MARINE 4 MERIT DR NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000617 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 59 LUKENS DR NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000618 HNS PLUMBING SERVICES LLC 418 PENCADER LN BEAR DE 90.00
25000619 FLAME TECH 23 SOUTHGATE BLVD NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000620 SUNBELT RENTALS INC 1733 INNOVATION PT FORT MILLS SC 50.00
25000621 IRON MOUNTAIN SECURE SHREDDING 1400 JOHNSON WAY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000622 NYCOM INC 14200 MICHAUX GLEN DR MIDLOTHIAN VA 360.00
25000623 WOODPECKER LAWNCARE 54 BUTTONWOOD AVE NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000624 NOBLE HOME SERVICES LLC 110 SYCAMORE LN TOWNSEND DE 50.00
25000625 GREENLINE LAWN & LANDSCAPE INC 19 SOUTHGATE BLVD STE 3 WILMINGTON DE 90.00
25000626 INSTA SIGNS PLUS OF DE INC 107 J & M DRIVE NEW CASTLE DE 210.00
25000627 GENUINE PARTS COMPANY INC 620 CENTERPOINT BLVD NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000628 LINEAGE LOGISTICS SERVICES 200 CENTERPOINT BLVD NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000629 CW WRIGHT CONSTRUCTION LLC 1610 ASHTON PK DR S CHESTERFLD VA 360.00
25000630 MOON SERVICES INC 1638 ELKTON RD ELKTON MD 360.00
25000631 KELLY'S KITCHEN WARE 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 55.00
25000632 CALHUM MECHANICAL PO BOX 30933 WILMINGTON DE 90.00
25000633 PREMIUM AIR SOLUTIONS 122 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000634 TROSS ASSOCIATES INC 122 B1 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000635 MCCLAIN BROTHERS LLC 511 W 11TH ST NEW CASTLE DE 55.00
25000636 ALL GOOD THINGS 208 DELAWARE ST NEW CASTLE DE 55.00
25000637 ISW CONTRACTING LLC 1116 MARSH RD WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000638 GAINOR AWNINGS INC 1 ELM AVE WILMINGTON DE 90.00
25000639 THE HOME DEPOT #1605 138 SUNSET BLVD NEW CASTLE DE 360.00
25000640 OWL SERVICES USA 10100 DIXIE HWY CLARKSTON MI 360.00
25000641 COHENS OUTLET FURNITURE 110 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000642 MAGANA CONTRACTING LLC 21 ANCHOR INN RD TOWNSEND DE 90.00
25000643 DIAMOND GENERAL CONTRACTORS 315 SINGLE AVE NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000644 GUARDIAN ROOF AND REPAIR PO BOX 111 PORT PENN DE 50.00
25000645 ROCK ROOF LLC 27 DICKENSON LN WILMINGTON DE 50.00
25000646 T-MOBILE NORTHEST LLC 118 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 396.00
25000647 T-MOBILE LEASING LLC 118 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 396.00
25000648 T-MOBILE FINANCIAL LLC 118 N DUPONT HWY NEW CASTLE DE 396.00
25000649 JUSTUFF 421 W 7TH ST NEW CASTLE DE 50.00
25000650 BRUCE INDUSTRIAL CO INC 4049 NEW CASTLE AVE NEW CASTLE DE 396.00
25000651 NEVO'S CONSTRUCTION LLC 146 KAIGHN AVE CAMDEN NJ 90.00
25000652 TREASURES REDISCOVERED LLC 8958 BELMAR CT ST LOUIS MO 90.00
Total 220 $38,739.00

License No.

JANUARY & FEBRUARY 2025 RENTAL LICENSES

Rental Housing License

Property Location

Paid Amount

R1500093 DIANE B GREEN 221 CHESTNUT ST 150.00
R1500185 FREDERICK S GUTOWSKI 1 PACKETT ALY 75.00
R1530080 JULIE GUTOWSKI 58 W 4TH ST 75.00
R1400230 ALEC TRAN 920 YOUNG ST 75.00
R1510092 BARBARA REGNIER-ONEILL 33 W 6TH ST 75.00
R1400296 JOHN & BRENDA ANTONIO 904 DELAWARE ST 75.00
T1510076 DAVID & LULA ATHERTON 513 DELAWARE ST 75.00
R1530032 DAVID & LULA ATHERTON 408 DELAWARE ST 75.00
R1530031 ANNA BURNS 406 DELAWARE ST 225.00




R1510125 ANNA BURNS 6 W5TH ST 150.00
R1530110 MARC SHAW 23 E4THST 75.00
R1700103 BOBBY WHITED 622 CLARK ST 75.00
R1700062 BOBBY WHITED 730 CLARK ST 75.00
R1700060 BOBBY WHITED 726 CLARK ST 75.00
R1700051 1ST STATE AFFORDABLE HOME SOLU 708 CLARK ST 75.00
R1700072 FIRST STATE AFFORDABLE HOME SOLU 1637 CLYMER ST 75.00
R1400335 MORTGAGE FEE LLC 814 CLAYTON ST 75.00
R1700011 EDMUND FONTANA 709 CLYMER ST 75.00
R1510054 ANTHONY COLLURAFICI 20 ESTH ST 75.00
R1530171 L & RINDUSTRIES LLC 112 DELAWARE ST 375.00
R1520048 L & RINDUSTRIES LLC 115 E3RD ST 225.00
R1510070 LEONARD RESETAR 525 DELAWARE ST 150.00
R1500024 L & RINDUSTRIES LLC 600 DELAWARE ST 225.00
R1700037 916 HOLDINGS LLC 729 CENTER ST 75.00
R1300078 916 HOLDINGS LLC 27 JUNIPER ST 75.00
R1510005 WALTER & LADYNE TAYLOR 619 CHERRY ST 75.00
R1400279 JOHN PAUL CHIZEA & M. GOLDBURG 913 CLAYTON ST 150.00
R1300012 FRANCIS DISABATINO JR 821 W 13TH ST 75.00
R0700071 FRANCIS DISABATINO JR 10 BALDT AVE 150.00
101510002 FRANCOIS CHARPENTIER 615 DELAWARE STU 9 75.00
R1520038 GWENDOLYN NORTH 159 E 3RD ST 75.00
R1400008 THANH CHAU 711 W 13TH ST 75.00
R1700044 DAVID & ANNETTE DIAMGELO 715 CENTER ST 75.00
R1400348 DAVID & ANNETTE DIAMGELO 122 W 8TH ST 75.00
R1400249 DAVID & ANNETTE DIAMGELO 201 W 9TH ST 75.00
R1800004 PATRICIA KRAMER 108 W 3RD ST 75.00
R1520065 MONICA BEARD & MICHAEL MADIGAN 147 E3RD ST 75.00
R1400500 BUCK-KENNETT IILLC 419 W 9TH ST 5,700.00
R1400398 GARRISON MH LLC 501 W 7TH ST 9,000.00
R1400183 BUCK-KENNETT IILLC 1 DEEMERS LANDING 10,800.00
D1510024 DAYA WASHINGTON 615 DELAWARE ST U 4 75.00
R1700092 GYPSY FOXLLC 603 CENTER ST 75.00
R1400283 JOHN & JODY BRADLEY 905 CLAYTON ST 75.00
R1700063 DANIEL DODD JR 732 CLARK ST 75.00
R1400315 PRIMUM VULPES LLC 819 CLAYTON ST 150.00
R1700052 PRIMUM VULPES LLC 710 CLARK ST 150.00
R1700081 JSR ENHANCED PROPERTIES LLC 619 CLYMER ST 75.00
R1500013 ROBERT RAPOSA 603 TREMONT ST 75.00
R1510044 REBEKAH & BRYAN FORD 525 CHERRY ST 75.00
R1400292 GUIDO DEASCANIS Il 5 W 10TH ST 75.00
R1400170 GUIDO & PAULINE DEASCANIS il 1200 DELAWARE ST 75.00
R1400171 DEASCANIS PROPERTIES LLC 1204 DELAWARE ST 75.00
R1400365 JAMES F SLAGLE 110W 7TH ST 75.00
R1700042 ASK COMPANY LLC 719 CENTER ST 75.00
R1400122 JJ BRIDEN ENTERPRISES LLC 14 JUNIPER ST 75.00
R1400314 JANELL WEDGE 821 CLAYTON ST 75.00
R1520027 PATRICIA KISH TRUSTEE 152 E3RD ST 75.00
R0700212 LEWIS F RIESS JR 1107 WILMINGTON RD 75.00
R1500211 CMS CONTRACTING LLC 25 W 7TH ST 75.00
R1510016 DANIELLE & JASON BARRETT 26 E6TH ST 75.00
R1700078 HOVIK & LACEY NAZARIAN 625 CLYMER ST 75.00
R1700082 THEONE PHILLIPS 617 CLYMER ST 75.00
R1510004 BENJAMIN MORRIS 621 CHERRY ST 75.00
R1400497 KENNETH & DAVID DELANEY 902 HYDER ALY 300.00
R1400496 KENNETH & DAVID DELANEY 903 HYDER ALY 300.00
R1400139 WASHINGTON PARK LLC 1000 WASHINGTON ST 75.00
R1400578 WASHINGTON PARK LLC 800 W 10TH ST 75.00
R1400224 NINTH STREET HOLDINGS LLC 200 W 9TH ST 450.00
R1530114 THOMAS & PATRICIA BULAT 10 E3RD ST 75.00
R0200044 EUGENE & MARCELLIS PETTY 44 BUTTONWOOD AVE 525.00
R1400428 JUSTIN MEYER 1115 GRAY ST 75.00
R1400160 408 INC 519 W 9TH ST 82.50
B1520065 CHRISTOPHER & MARY CASHMAN 149 E3RD ST 75.00
R1510111 CHRISTOPHER & MARY CASHMAN 48 E4TH ST 75.00
R1500166 CHRISTOPHER & MARY CASHMAN 112 ATHE STRAND 150.00
R0400035 JOHN & MARILYN COCHRAN 1201 WILMINGTON RD 150.00
R1400161 T ACOCHRAN & SON INC 821 LARKIN ST 75.00
R1510109 LAURA FONTANA 44 E4TH ST 75.00
R1500032 BGD PROPERTIES LLC SERIES D 620 DELAWARE ST 75.00
R0500023 DUNKLEY REAL ESTATE LLC 120 BUTTONWOOD AVE 75.00
R1700105 CARA MILLER 618 CLARK ST 75.00
R1700001 JERMANE WILSON 729 CLYMER ST 75.00
Total 82 $34,132.50




JANUARY & FERUARY 2025 BUILDING PERMITS

Permit No. Owner Name Property Location Work Type Zone HDFee DDD Date Cost Paid Amount
26139 MATTHEW & VALERIE JERMUSW YK 38 E 5TH ST REPAIR REPLACE HR 50 12/31/24 7,314.00 309.71
26140 FREEDOM DEVELOPMENT LLC 228 N HERON CIR ALTERATION R3 1/8/25 1,300.00 345.00
26141 THOMAS MADDUX & LINDA MERRY 117 HARMONY ST ALTERATION HR 50 1/8/25 7,831.00 317.46
26142 SHAWN & KARRIE ROY 919 CLAYONB ST REPAIR REPLACE R3 1/7/125 16,483.00 397.24
26143 ROBERT & LEOLA SINK JR 704 TREMONT ST ALTERATION R2 1/10/25 1,240.00 168.60
26144 NOREEN SCOTT GARRITY 128 CASIMIR DR REPAIR REPLACE R1 1/13/25 8,333.00 274.99
26145 SALLY STEHL 30 E 4TH ST REPAIR REPLACE HR 50 1/10/25 3,000.00 245.00
26146 CENTER SQUARE ASSOICATES LLC 202 DELAWERE ST REPAIR REPLACE HC 50 DDD | 1/13/25 14,550.00 418.25
26148 RICHARD DAY 114 DELAWARE ST REPAIR REPLACE HC 50 DDD | 1/22/25 12,000.00 380.00
26149 FREEDOM DEVELOPMENT LLC 249 N HERON CIR NEW BUILDING R3 1/23/25 3,700.00 50.00
26150 FREEDOM DEVELOPMENT LLC 242 N HERON CIR NEW BUILDING R3 1/23/25 3,800.00 50.00
26151 FREEDOM DEVELOPMENT LLC 251 N HERON CIR NEW BUILDING R3 1/23/25 10,000.00 50.00
26152 FREEDOM DEVELOPMENT LLC 506 ARROWGRASS LN NEW BUILDING R3 1/23/25 10,000.00 50.00
26153 JEANETTE H ANDRESS TRUSTEE 712 W 11TH ST REPAIR REPLACE R1 1/27/25 350.00 50.00
26154 JENNIFER & DELANEY RYDLEWSKI 106 STUYVESANT AVE ALTERATION R1 1/29/24 6,500.00 247.50
26155 TINOTHY JOHNSON & KEVIN O'BRIEN 15 W 3RD ST REPAIR REPLACE HR 50 DDD | 1/29/25 9,895.00 348.42
26156 GAIL NYONDE & ERICA SETH 101 SWEDES ST REPAIR REPLACE R1 2/5/25 9,995.00 299.92
26157 CURTIS & JERI TURNER 605 DELAWARE ST REPAIR REPLACE R2 50 DDD | 2/10/25 3,800.00 257.00
26158 DWAYNE HILL 1205 WILMINGTON RD REPAIR REPLACE R1 2/7/25 4,400.00 216.00
26159 TRUSTEES OF NEW CASTLE COMMON 1 CENTERPOINT BLVD SIGN | 2/3/25 2,725.00 190.88
26160 CHRISTOPHER SANTORE 2 CASIMIR CT REPAIR REPLACE R1 2/3/25 987.00 50.00
26161 L & RINDUSTRIES LLC 112 DELAWARE ST REPAIR REPLACE HC 50 DDD 2/3/25 500.00 100.00
26162 FREEDOM DEVELOPMENT LLC 212 N HERON CIR NEW BUILDING R3 2/5125 300,000.00 4,650.00
26163 TSBP 2 LLC 350 ANCHOR MILL RD REPAIR REPLACE OSR 2/7125 58,975.00 1,034.62
26164 MICHAEL IRWIN & EMILY ARCHER 911 CLAYTON ST REPAIR REPLACE R3 2/7125 972.00 50.00
26165 JOHN & CHERYLD IORIZZO 743 W 11TH ST REPAIR REPLACE R1 2/10/24 15,596.00 383.94
26166 HOLLY HEILNER 57 W 5TH ST ALTERATION HR 50 DDD | 2/10/25 18,363.00 475.44
26167 ALLAN MCCALL 521 W 9TH ST REPAIR REPLACE R1 2/12/25 8,300.00 274.50
26168 JOHN & JOY MCNALLY JR 1105 WILMINGTON RD REPAIR REPLACE R1 2/13/25 39,178.00 737.67
26169 JOSEPH DELANEY 303 E 14TH ST REPAIR REPLACE R1 2/19/25 12,500.00 337.50
26170 KAYLA DICKENS & MICHAEL WESSELS 131 W 9TH ST REPAIR REPLACE R3 2/21/25 844.52 50.00
26171 ALFRED BOLAND 122 DELAWARE ST ALTERATION HC 50 DDD | 2/25/25 900.00 100.00
26172 DEEMER PROPERTIES LLC 600 TREMONT ST REPAIR REPLACE R2 2/25/25 7,580.00 263.70
26173 FREEDOM DEVELOPMENT LLC 212 N HERON CIR NEW BUILDING R3 2/25/25 3,700.00 50.00
26174 JOANN DAVIS 1612 WILMINGTON RD ALTERATION R2 2/26/25 4,851.00 222.76
26175 KEVIN WADE 137 E 3RD ST REPAIR REPLACE HR 50 2/27/25 5,105.00 276.57
26176 THOMAS BRADBURY 139 W 3RD ST REPAIR REPLACE HR 2/27/25 5,000.00 275.00
26177 CECIL & LAUREN HOSKINS 179 E 4TH ST ALTERATION HR 2/27/25 5,700.00 235.50
26178 JAMES EGERTON 130 DELAWARE ST ALTERATION HR 50 DDD | 2/27/25 1,776.00 226.64
26179 JAMES EGERTON 130 DELAWARE ST ALTERATION HR 50 DDD | 2/27/25 10,000.00 350.00

Total 40 $638,043.52 $14,809.81







GOOD WILL FIRE COMPANY
FEBRUARY REVIEW 2025




Map of Coverage Area

Al

XCollins,Park

15
S

,
]

Station 18

New “stle




Coverage Area Continue

® Grid 1800: New Castle (Downtown area)

® Grid 1810: Van Dyke Village; Baldton; New Castle Manor;
Boothhurst; Booker Circle; Penn Valley; Buttonwood;
Castle Hills; Jefferson Farms; Boulden

® Grid 1820: Stockton; Wilmington Manor Gardens; Penn
Acres South

® Grid 1833: Delaware River from 3™ St Boat Ramp to the
High-Tension Power Lines

® Grid 1834: Delaware River from 3™ St Boat Ramp to the
area of Buttonwood

® Grid 1840: Washington Park; Dobbinsville; Centerpoint
Industrial Park; Quigley Blvd

® Grid 1850: Villages of Llangollen; Llangollen Estates;
Riversedge; Wynthorpe; Beaverbrook Crest; Bayview
Manor; Pines at Bayview

® Grid 1870: Riverbend

® Grid 18TRL: Jack A. Markell Trail (from Delaware St. to
Boulden Blvd)



70

60

50

40

30

20

10

Ems Incidents for the Month

Scene Incident Zone Number of Runs Percent of Total Runs
1210 2 1.10%
1211 1 0.55%
1213 1 0.55%
1215 1 0.55%
1216 2 1.10%
1217 1 0.55%
1800 25 13.81%
1810 62 34.25%
1820 20 11.05%
1840 11 6.08%
1850 16 8.84%
2000 5 2.76%
2015 1 0.55%
2100 1 0.55%
2200 1 0.55%
2210 1 0.55%
2230 1 0.55%
2800 3 1.66%
2810 2 1.10%
2830 1 0.55%
2840 2 1.10%
3210 16 8.84%
W102 1 0.55%

4 2.21%
Total 181




70

60

50

40

30

20

o

In District Responses

1800 1810 1820 1840 1850
Scene Incident Zone Number of Runs Percent of Total Runs

1800 25 13.81%
1810 62 34.25%
1820 20 11.05%
1840 11 6.08%
1850 16 8.84%
Total 134




18

16

14

12

10

S

N

Out of District Responses

1210 1211 1213 1215 1216 1217 2000 2015 2100 2200 2210 2230 2800 2810 2830 2840 3210 W102

Scene Incident Zone Number of Runs Percent of Total Runs
1210 2 1.10%
1211 1 0.55%
1213 1 0.55%
1215 1 0.55%
1216 2 1.10%
1217 1 0.55%
2000 5 2.76%
2015 1 0.55%
2100 1 0.55%
2200 1 0.55%
2210 1 0.55%
2230 1 0.55%
2800 3 1.66%
2810 2 1.10%
2830 1 0.55%
2840 2 1.10%
3210 16 8.84%
W102 1 0.55%

4 2.21%
Total 47




15:00:00 -

06:00:00 -

18:00:00 - 20:59:59 = 21:00:00 - 23:59:59

17:59:59

08:59:59 09:00:00 - 11:59:59 = 12:00:00 - 14:59:59

00:00:00 - 02:59:59  03:00:00 - 05:59:59

Sum of Number of Runs by Incident Three Hour Range Of Day 24

Saturday
Friday
Thursday
Wednesday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday
Saturday
Friday
Thursday
Wednesday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday
Saturday
Friday
Wednesday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday
Saturday
Friday
Thursday
Wednesday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday
Saturday
Friday
Thursday
Wednesday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday
Saturday
Friday
Thursday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday
Saturday
Friday
Thursday
Wednesday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday
Saturday
Friday
Thursday
Wednesday
Tuesday
Monday
Sunday

o

N

H

[e)]

o]

=
o

12



Incidents by Response Disposition

Disposition Incident Patient Disposition

(eDisposition.12) Number of Runs Percent of Total Runs
BLS Transport (911 calls - if you are a BLS
Provider) 111 61.33%
Cancellation 32 17.68%
Patient Refusal 21 11.60%
Public Service 7 3.87%
Transfer of Care 6 3.31%
Agency Assist 3 1.66%
Unable to Location Patient / Scene 1 0.55%
Total 181




Fire Incidents for the Month

Good Intent Call
18.06%

Service Call
417%

Hazardous Condition (Mo Fire)
6.94%

Rescue & Emergency Medical...
31.94%

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE
Fires
Overpressure rupture, explosion, overheat -
no fire
Rescue & Emergency Medical Service
Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
Service Call
Good Intent Call
False Alarm & False Call
Special Incident Type

TOTAL

Fires

1.39%

# INCIDENTS

15

1

23

13

10

72

20.83%

False Alarm & False Call
13.89%

Special Incident Type
2.78%

Overpressure rupture, explosion,...

% of TOTAL
20.83%
1.39%

31.94%
6.94%
4.17%

18.06%

13.89%
2.78%

100%



Breakdown by Incident Type

INCIDENT TYPE
111 - Building fire
113 - Cooking fire, confined to container
131 - Passenger vehicle fire
134 - Water vehicle fire
141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire
142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire
251 - Excessive heat, scorch burns with no
ignition
311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew
322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries
352 - Extrication of victim(s) from vehicle
365 - Watercraft rescue

410 - Combustible/flammable gas/liquid
condition, other
424 - Carbon monoxide incident

441 - Heat from short circuit (wiring),
defective/worn
520 - Water problem, other

553 - Public service
571 - Cover assignment, standby, move up

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route

622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch

address
733 - Smoke detector activation due to
malfunction

746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no

CO
900 - Special type of incident, other

# INCIDENTS
6

= N A AN

-_— -

N DN

% of TOTAL

8.33%
5.56%
1.39%
1.39%
2.78%
1.39%
1.39%

26.39%
2.78%
1.39%
1.39%

2.78%
2.78%
1.39%

1.39%

1.39%

1.39%
16.67%

1.39%

12.5%

1.39%
2.78%



In District Incidents for the Month

Good Intent Call
5%

Service Call
5%

False Alarm & False Call
25%

Hazardous Condition {No Fire)
5%

Fires
7.5%

QOverpressure rupture,...
2.5%

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service
50%

Fires 3 7.5%
Overpressure rupture, explosion, overheat - 1 2.5%
no fire
Rescue & Emergency Medical Service 20 50%
Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 2 5%
Service Call 2 5%
Good Intent Call 2 5%
False Alarm & False Call 10 25%
TOTAL 40 100%

10



Breakdown by Incident Type

INCIDENT TYPE

113 - Cooking fire, confined to container

134 - Water vehicle fire

141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire

251 - Excessive heat, scorch burns with no

ignition

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

352 - Extrication of victim(s) from vehicle

424 - Carbon monoxide incident

520 - Water problem, other

553 - Public service

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route

733 - Smoke detector activation due to
malfunction

746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no

CO

# INCIDENTS

17

% of TOTAL

2.5%

2.5%

2.5%

2.5%

42.5%

5%

2.5%

5%

2.5%

2.5%

5%

22.5%

2.5%

11



Out of District Incidents for the Month

Good Intent Call
34.38%

Service Call
312%

Special Incident Type
6.25%

Hazardous Condition {(No...
9.38%

Rescue & Emergency...
9.38%

Fires
37.5%

Fires 12 37.5%
Rescue & Emergency Medical Service 3 9.38%
Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 3 9.38%
Service Call 1 3.12%
Good Intent Call 11 34.38%
Special Incident Type 2 6.25%

TOTAL 32 100%




Breakdown by Incident Type

# INCIDENTS
INCIDENT TYPE

111 - Building fire

6
113 - Cooking fire, confined to container .
131 - Passenger vehicle fire .
141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire ’
142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire .
311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew >
365 - Watercraft rescue .
410 - Combustible/flammable gas/liquid
condition, other 2
441 - Heat from short circuit (wiring),
defective/worn 1
571 - Cover assignment, standby, move up .
611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 10
622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch
address 1
900 - Special type of incident, other 5

% of TOTAL

18.75%

9.38%

3.12%

3.12%

3.12%

6.25%

3.12%

6.25%

3.12%

3.12%

31.25%

3.12%

6.25%

13



Incidents by Day of the Week

13

§ § § F § F Z
[ b = m
=
DAY OF THE WEEK # INCIDENTS
Sunday 11
Monday 11
Tuesday 11
Wednesday 14
Thursday 10
Friday 5
Saturday 10
TOTAL 72

14



[T N TR = = T = = ]

Incidents by Hour

Q000 - 0059

01:00-01:59

02:00 - 02:59

04:00 - 0459

0600 - 0659
o700 - 0759
0500 - 0559
09:00 - 09:59

HOUR
00:00 - 00:59
01:00 - 01:59
02:00 - 02:59
04:00 - 04:59
06:00 - 06:59
07:00 - 07:59
08:00 - 08:59
09:00 - 09:59
10:00 - 10:59
11:00 - 11:59
12:00 - 12:59
13:00 - 13:59
14:00 - 14:59
15:00 - 15:59
16:00 - 16:59
18:00 - 18:59
19:00 - 19:59
20:00 - 20:59
21:00 - 21:59
22:00 - 22:59
23:00 - 23:59

10:00 - 10:59

11:00 - 11:59

12:00 - 12:58

13:00 - 1355

14:00 - 14:59

15:00 - 15:59

16:00 - 16:59
18:00 - 18:59
19:00 - 19:59
20000 - 20:59

# INCIDENTS

N

W oo~ 0N DWW A0~

21:00 - 21:59

22:00 - 22:59

2300 - 2350

15



City Council Report
For February 2025

NEW CASTLE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT

MONTHLY REPORT
March 11th, 2025



NEW CASTLE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT

Total Total Dispatched Crime Reports Field Service Reports
Complaints Calls Written
256 206 124 102
Overdose/NARCAN DUI Shooting Outside City Shooting Inside City
0/0 2 0 1
February Enforcement
Data
60
50
40
30
20
) '
Ay Ay Total

0

Felony

H Total

pg. 1

Misdemeanor
11

Other
1

Traffic




NEW CASTLE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT

February 2025
YTD Crime Statistics
PART I CRIMES
Crime 2025 2024
Kidnap 0 1
Rape 2 1
Robbery 0 0
Assault/Aggravated 4 3
Burglary 3 dl,
Theft 31 32
Theft/Auto 0 1
All Other 0 5
40 44
PART II CRIMES
Crime 2025 2024
Other Assaults 11 14
Rec. Stolen Property 0 0
Criminal Mischief 8 9
Weapons 2 B
Other Sex Offenses 1 0
Drugs 7 10
Noise/Disorderly Premise 7 7
Trespass 3 3
Disorderly Conduct 1 1
Other 155 199
195 246
PART III CRIMES
Crime 2025 2024
Alarm 68 47
Animal Control 2 2
Recovered Property 2 4
Service 92 120
Suspicious Per/Veh 11 31
175 204
410 494

pg. 2




NEW CASTLE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT

Crash Data

18
16
14
12
10
8
6
4

2 .

[
Injury Crash Reportable Damage Non-Reportable No Report Required
B Crash Type 1 7 3 16
B Crash Type
Primary Contributing Factors
Animal in Roadway -
Deer
Other improper driving 9%

0,
18% Disregard Traffic Signal
. 9%
/
. Driver inattention,
Improper backing . . -
18% distraction, or fatigue

19%
Following too close .

9% Failed to yield right of
way

18%

pg. 3




NEW CASTLE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT

February 2025
Quality of Life Calls

Location / Crime Type Total
Airport Plaza Shopping Ctr
Disorderly person
Suspicious vehicle
Terroristic Threatening Weapons
Theft - In Progress
Theft - Just Occurred
Trespass - In Progress
Boothhurst
Noise Complaint

(0]

Buttonwood

Shooting
Suspicious person
Trespass - In Progress
Dobbinsville
Criminal Mischief - Just Occurred

RIRINRIRIRPRIWRIRRRINRIR|N

Drug Violation
New Castle/Shawtown
Disorderly person
Fight - In Progress
Indecent Exposure
Loud Music/Party
Noise Complaint
Sexual Offenses

[EE
%)

Traffic Violation

Trespass - In Progress
Riveredge Industrial Park
Trespass - In Progress
South River Shop Plaza
Theft - Just Occurred
Twin Spans Industrial Park

Terror. Threatening-Just Occurred
Van Dyke Plaza
Traffic Violation
Washington Square
Suspicious person
Grand Total

RPRiRr|lRPIPRIRPRWWlR[R|RIMNMNINM OV R~

w
D

pg. 4




NEW CASTLE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT

Response Time
In several incident types, multiple outliers affected the overall response time. Several common
causes of these deviations are;

1. Responding officer not marked or does not transmit “on scene”.

2. Officers delay their direct response to check the area around the location for suspects or
victims known to have fled the scene.

3. Incidents are downgraded after entry but before dispatch.

Priority One Calls for Service
February 2025

Accident PI 1 0:05:44

Burglary - In Progress 3 0:04:21
Domestic - In Progress 5 0:04:16
Domestic w/Weapons - In Progress 3 0:03:59
Fight - In Progress 1 0:01:02

Mental Patient Violent 5 0:06:22
Person with Gun 1 0:03:08
Robbery - Just Occurred 1 0:14:20
Shooting 1 0:02:36

Suicidal Person - In Progress 1 0:03:31
Suicidal Person w/Weapon-In Prog 2 0:05:01
Terroristic Threatening Weapons 2 0:03:46

pg. 5




Arbor Day Proclamation

Proclaiming April 25, 2025 as Arbor Day in the City of New Castle

WHEREAS, in 1872, at the suggestion of J. Sterling Morton, the Nebraska Board of
Agriculture established a special day to be set aside for the planting of trees, and

WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed on April 10, 1872, with
the planting of more than a million trees in Nebraska; and

WHEREAS, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world; and

WHEREAS, trees can be a solution to combating climate change by reducing the erosion
of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cutting heating and cooling costs, moderating
the temperature, cleaning the air, producing life-giving oxygen, and providing habitat for
wildlife, and

WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for
our fires and countless other wood products; and

WHEREAS, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of
business areas, and beautify our community; and

WHEREAS, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual renewal.

WHEREAS, the City of New Castle has been named a “Tree City” by the Arbor Day
Foundation.

NOW, THEREFORE, 1, Valarie Leary, Mayor of the City of New Castle, Delaware, do
hereby proclaim, April 25, 2025 as Arbor Day in the City of New Castle Delaware and I
urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and support efforts to protect our trees and
woodlands; and

Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being
of this and future generations.

Dated this 11" day of March 2025

Valarie Leary, Mayor




Resolution 2025-18

A Resolution to Appoint Melissa Pavone to the Flood Resiliency Committee

WHEREAS, the New Castle City Council established the Sea Level Rise Task Force by
Resolution 2022-04; and

WHEREAS, Resolution 2023-32 converted that task force to a permanent committee known as
the Flood Resiliency Committee; and

WHEREAS, there is currently a vacancy on this committee to which Ms. Pavone has agreed to
be appointed.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following
person to the Flood Resiliency Committee:

Melissa Pavone — Flood Resiliency Committee — Term Ending January 9, 2027

PASSED this 11th day of March 2025

Suzanne Souder, City Council President Joseph F. Day, III, Councilperson
Nermin Zubaca, Councilperson Andrew Zeltt, Councilperson
Attest:

Brian Mattaway, Councilperson

Courtaney Taylor, City Clerk






Melissa Pavone
Summary of Experience and Education

Experience: Executive Director, Affordable Housing Initiatives, Archdiocese of New York. | held this
position for thirteen years. | oversaw the management of 3,000 affordable housing apartments. | also
served as the owner's representative for the rehabilitation of 1,200 units and new construction of 600
units.

Prior to that, | was a Deputy Director for Planning for the New York City Housing Authority. In this
position, | worked to develop new police stations and new affordable housing developments.

| worked as a City Planner in NYC for 18 years. In addition to the position | held in the New York Housing
Authority, | also worked for the Mayor's office and Department of Sanitation.

| hold a Ph.d. and a Master's degree in political science from the City University of New York. | have
another Master's degree in City and Regional Planning. | have a B.A. in American Studies from the
University of Florida.



Resolution 2025-19

A Resolution to Approve MSC Financing the purchase of two vehicles through M&T Bank.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Services Commission (“MSC”) Charter, Section 3(g),
“the Commission, upon unanimous approval of the Commissioners, and following approval by
resolution of the Council of the City of New Castle, is authorized and empowered to borrow

sums of money” in accordance with the additional provisions provided therein (subsections (1)
through (x));

WHEREAS, the MSC budgeted for the purchase of the vehicles to be financed;
WHEREAS, the MSC solicited bids from financial institutions for financing of the purchases;
WHEREAS, M&T Bank provided the most advantageous financing terms;

WHEREAS, the Commissioners voted unanimously to approve and proceed with such
financing, not to exceed $485,000 at their February 2025 meeting;

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of New Castle has determined that the financing complies
with the provisions of Section 3(g) of the MSC Charter, and has no other objections to the MSC
proceeding with such financing;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:
That the MSC has approval from the Council of the City of New Castle to proceed with
completing the financing of the vehicle purchases through M&T Bank.

PASSED this 11" day of March 2025.

Suzanne Souder, City Council President Joseph F. Day, III, Councilperson
Nermin Zubaca, Councilperson Andrew Zeltt, Councilperson
Attest:

Brian Mattaway, Councilperson

Courtaney Taylor, City Clerk



	03-10- 2025 City Council Agenda.pdf
	2.18.25.Council.RegMtgREV.pdf
	2.19.25.Council.SpMtg.pdf
	BoH.reporttocitycouncil.for2024.march3.2025.pdf
	PROCLAMATION for Arbor Day 2025
	Use this-February 2025 TREASURERS REPORT-use this.pdf
	08-FEBRUARY 2025 YTD Report.pdf
	January - February 2025 Activity.pdf
	January - February 2025 Report.pdf
	January  February 2025  Business  Rental License Report.pdf
	January  February 2025  Building Permit Report.pdf
	Resolution 2025-18 Melissa Pavone to Flood Resiliency
	Melissa Pavone- Summary of Education and Experience.pdf
	Resolution 2025-19 A Resolution To Approve MSC Financing the purchase of two vehicles through M&T Bank.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

